

# **GE Fanuc Automation**

**Computer Numerical Control Products** 

*Open CNC DNC Operation Management Package* 

**Operator's Manual** 

GFZ-63214EN/01

February 1999

# Warnings, Cautions, and Notes as Used in this Publication

## Warning

Warning notices are used in this publication to emphasize that hazardous voltages, currents, temperatures, or other conditions that could cause personal injury exist in this equipment or may be associated with its use.

In situations where inattention could cause either personal injury or damage to equipment, a Warning notice is used.

Caution

Caution notices are used where equipment might be damaged if care is not taken.

#### Note

Notes merely call attention to information that is especially significant to understanding and operating the equipment.

This document is based on information available at the time of its publication. While efforts have been made to be accurate, the information contained herein does not purport to cover all details or variations in hardware or software, nor to provide for every possible contingency in connection with installation, operation, or maintenance. Features may be described herein which are not present in all hardware and software systems. GE Fanuc Automation assumes no obligation of notice to holders of this document with respect to changes subsequently made.

GE Fanuc Automation makes no representation or warranty, expressed, implied, or statutory with respect to, and assumes no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, sufficiency, or usefulness of the information contained herein. No warranties of merchantability or fitness for purpose shall apply.

©Copyright 1999 GE Fanuc Automation North America, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

# SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

This manual includes safety precautions for protecting the user and preventing damage to the machine. Precautions are classified into Warnings and Cautions according to their bearing on safety. Also, supplementary information is described as Notes. Read the Warnings, Cautions, and Notes thoroughly before attempting to use the machine.

#### WARNING

Applied when there is a danger of the user being injured or when there is a danger of both the user being injured and the equipment being damaged if the approved procedure is not observed.

#### CAUTION

Applied when there is a danger of the equipment being damaged, if the approved procedure is not observed.

#### NOTE

Notes is used to indicate supplementary information other than Warnings and Cautions.

O Read this manual carefully, and store it in a safe place.

# **General Warnings and Cautions**

#### WARNING

- Never attempt to machine a workpiece without first checking the operation of the machine. Before starting a production run, ensure that the machine is operating correctly by performing a trial run using, for example, the single block, feedrate override, or machine lock function, or by operating the machine with neither a tool nor workpiece mounted. Failure to confirm the correct operation of the machine may result in the machine behaving unexpectedly, possibly causing damage to the workpiece and/or machine itself, or injury to the user.
- Before operating the machine, thoroughly check the entered data. Operating the machine with incorrectly specified data may result in the machine behaving unexpectedly, possibly causing damage to the workpiece and/or machine itself, or injury to the user.
- 3. Ensure that the specified feedrate is appropriate for the intended operation. Generally, for each machine, there is a maximum allowable feedrate. The appropriate feedrate varies with the intended operation. Refer to the manual provided with the machine to determine the maximum allowable feedrate. If a machine is run at other than the correct speed, it may behave unexpectedly, possibly causing damage to the workpiece and/or machine itself, or injury to the user.
- 4. When using a tool compensation function, thoroughly check the direction and amount of compensation. Operating the machine with incorrectly specified data may result in the machine behaving unexpectedly, possibly causing damage to the workpiece and/or machine itself, or injury to the user.
- 5. The parameters for the CNC and PMC are factory-set. Usually, there is no need to change them. When, however, there is no alternative other than to change a parameter, ensure that you fully understand the function of the parameter before making any change.

Failure to set a parameter correctly may result in the machine behaving unexpectedly, possibly causing damage to the workpiece and/or machine itself, or injury to the user.

#### CAUTION

- The operator's manual for DNC Operation Management Package describes all the basic functions of the CNC, including the optional functions. The selected optional functions vary with the machine. Some functions described in this manual may not, therefore, be supported by your machine. Check the machine specifications before using DNC Operation Management Package.
- Some machine operations and screen functions are implemented by the machine tool builder. For an explanation of their usage and related notes, refer to the manual provided by the machine tool builder.

#### For example:

- On some machines, executing a tool function causes the tool change unit to operate. When executing a tool function on such a machine, stand well clear of the tool change unit. Otherwise, there is a danger of injury to the operator.
- Many auxiliary functions trigger physical operations, such as rotation of the spindle. Before attempting to use an auxiliary function, therefore, ensure that you are fully aware of the operation to be triggered by that function.

#### NOTE

Command programs, parameters, and variables are stored in nonvolatile memory in the CNC. Generally, the contents of memory are not lost by a power on/off operation. However, the contents of memory may be erased by mistake, or important data in nonvolatile memory may have to be erased upon recovering from a failure. To enable the restoration of data as soon as possible if such a situation arises, always make a backup of the data in advance.

# Warnings and Cautions Relating to DNC Operation Management Package

Warnings and cautions relating to DNC Operation Management Package are explained in this manual. Before using the function, read this manual thoroughly to become familiar with the provided Warnings, Cautions, and Notes.

On the next page, the points to be noted when DNC Operation Management Package is used are summarized. These points are not explained in Chapter 1 and the subsequent chapters of this manual. Read this part before attempting to use the function.

# **Important Notice**

The following summarizes the points to be noted when the DNC Operation Management Package is used. Before attempting to use the DNC Operation Management Package, read the following:

#### CAUTION

- This manual does not explain in detail those operations and parameters that vary from one CNC model to another and which vary with options. For an explanation of such operations and parameters, refer to the relevant CNC manual and the manual supplied by the machine tool builder.
- This manual describes as many reasonable variations in usage as possible. It cannot address every combination of features, options, and commands that should not be attempted. If a particular combination of operations is not described, it should not be attempted.

# PREFACE

Thank you for purchasing the DNC Operation Management Package.

DNC Operation Management Package implements DNC operation in an open CNC environment, thus allowing NC programs to be sent directly from a personal computer to the NC.

DNC Operation Management Package is supported by Microsoft<sup>®</sup> Windows<sup>®</sup>. This manual does not explain the basic common operations of Windows.

Users who are using Windows for the first time should read the manuals on Windows first to become familiar with the basic operation of Windows.

Read this manual thoroughly to ensure the correct use of. DNC Operation Management Package

#### NOTE

The purchased software product can be copied within the plant, as required. The machine tool builder should ship machines together with a backup copy of the software product.

FANUC holds the copyright on this software product. Redistributing the entire software product, or part of it, to a third party to develop an application is not allowed.

Microsoft and Windows are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation. Windows NT and OLE are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation. Pentium and Pentium Pro are trademarks of Intel Corporation.

### **DNC Operation Management Package Features and Restrictions**

DNC Operation Management Package has the following features:

#### Features

- Implements DNC operation in an open CNC environment, thus allowing NC programs to be sent directly from a personal computer to the NC.
- The function of Basic Operation Package 1 can be extended further by incorporating DNC Operation Management Package in the Basic Operation Package 1.

- Offers operability such that current users of FANUC CNCs can quickly become familiar with the system.
- Allows customization to improve operability, such as modifying the screen settings or adding or deleting a screen.
- Provides each screen as an ActiveX component, such that it can be embedded into a program developed with Visual Basic 4.0/5.0.

The following restrictions are imposed on DNC Operation Management Package:

#### Restrictions

• This software is designed to be used with a personal computer connected to High Speed Serial Bus Type 2, the FS160i/180i/210i having personal computer functions, a personal computer in which the NC Board has been installed, or Intelligent Terminal Type 2. It cannot be used with the MMC-IV, a personal computer connected to High Speed Serial Bus Type 1, or Intelligent Terminal Type 1.

For an HSSB multi-connection, this software can only be used with a single CNC.

- This software supports the following CNCs: CNC connected to Intelligent Terminal Type 2 FS150-MB/TB (for systems having only up to 15 axes) FS160-MC/TC/MMC/TTC, FS180-MC/TC/TTC FS160i-MA/TA, FS180i-MA/TA, FS210i-MA/TA
- CNC connected to a personal computer via High Speed Serial Bus Type 2

FS15-MB/TB (for systems having only up to 15 axes) FS16-MC/TC/MMC/TTC, FS18-MC/TC/TTC FS16i-MA/TA, FS18i-MA/TA, FS21i-MA/TA

• CNC having personal computer functions FS160i-MA/TA, FS180i-MA/TA, FS210i-MA/TA

## **Contents of the Product Package**

This product package consists of the following:

Floppy disks

DNC Operation Management Package (A02B-0207-K750#ZZ07)

#### NOTE

Read the Release Note (README.TXT), provided on the first floppy disk of the product package. It provides detailed information on this product package and information not described in the operator's manual.

### **Organization of This Manual**

This manual is organized as follows:

#### SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

Explains the general precautions which must be observed to ensure safety when DNC Operation Management Package is used.

#### PREFACE

Briefly explains the features of DNC Operation Management Package. Also explains how to use information on the usage of DNC Operation Management Package, including this manual.

#### 1. SETUP

Explains how to set up the environment for operating DNC Operation Management Package and how to prepare DNC Operation Management Package for use.

#### 2. BASIC KNOWLEDGE

Provides basic information with which the user should be familiar before attempting to use DNC Operation Management Package.

#### 3. SCHEDULED OPERATION

Describes how to set and perform scheduled operation.

#### 4. SUBPROGRAM CALL OPERATION

Describes how to set and perform subprogram call operation.

#### 5. MONITORING THE PROGRESS OF DNC OPERATION

Describes how to monitor the progress of DNC operation.

#### 6. CUSTOMIZATION

Describes how to customize DNC Operation Management Package.

#### APPENDIX

Provides supplementary information to be read as required, such as how to back up the setting file.

## **Notation Conventions**

The following explains the notation conventions used in this manual:

• Menu, command, and screen notations

Example	Explanation
[File] menu	Menu names are enclosed in brackets [].
[Setting]	Command names are enclosed in brackets [].
[Program Edit] screen	Screen names (displayed on the title bars) are
	enclosed in brackets [].
<ok> button</ok>	Command buttons on the display are enclosed
	in angle brackets < >.

#### • Key notations and operation

Example	Explanation
[Enter] key	Key names are enclosed in brackets [].
[Ctrl]+[Tab] keys	When keys are to be pressed and held down
	sequentially, the keys are indicated by
	connecting them with +, as shown on the left.
Direction keys	The $[\rightarrow]$ , $[\leftarrow]$ , $[\uparrow]$ , and $[\downarrow]$ keys are
	collectively called the direction keys.

#### • Mouse operations

Example	Explanation
Click	Press a mouse button, then release it
	immediately.
Double-click	Click a mouse button twice in quick
	succession.
Drag	Move the mouse while holding down a mouse
	button, then release the button at a desired
	location.

#### • Folders

This manual refers to directories and folders collectively as folders.

#### • Sample screens

The screens shown in this manual are examples of the standard system supplied by FANUC. Note that the screen layouts and displayed file names may vary with the equipment being used and according to customization.

Soft keys or screens are not displayed if the equipment being used does not support the corresponding functions (for example, some functions are supported only by machining center systems) or if the CNC options for the corresponding functions are not installed.

• CNC units

Unless otherwise specified, FS16/18/21 refers to FS16/18-MC/TC/MMC/TTC, FS160/180-MC/TC/MMC/TTC, FS16i/18i/21i-MA/TA, and FS160i /180i/210i-MA/TA, while FS15 refers to FS15-MB/TB and FS150-MB/TB.

## SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

General Warning and Cautions

Warnings and Cautions Relating to DNC Operation Management Package

Important Notice

## PREFACE

DNC Operation Management Package Features and Restrictions

Contents of the Product Package

Organization of This Manual

Notation Conventions

## CONTENTS

1	SE	<b>TUP</b> 1
	1.1	Operating Environment
	1.2	Installing DNC Operation Management Package4
	1.3	Setting the CNC Parameters
	1.4	Integration with Basic Operation Package 1
	1.5	Uninstalling DNC Operation Management Package10
2	BA	SIC KNOWLEDGE
	2.1	DNC Operation
	2.2	Starting and Terminating DNC Operation Management Package
		2.2.1 Starting DNC Operation Management Package
		2.2.2 Terminating DNC Operation Management Package
	2.3	Screens
	2.4	Window Names and Functions
	2.5	Displaying Version Information
3	SC	HEDULED OPERATION
	3.1	Performing Scheduled Operation
	3.2	NC Programs for Scheduled Operation
	3.3	Setting Scheduled Operation
		3.3.1 Creating a new schedule file
		3.3.2 Opening an existing schedule file
		3.3.3 Saving a schedule file under a new name

4	SU	BPF	ROGRAM CALL OPERATION	
	4.1	Perfo	rming Subprogram Call Operation	37
	4.2	NC P	Programs for Subprogram Call Operation	
	4.3	Settir	ng Subprogram Call Operation	
		4.3.1	Specifying a folder containing subprograms	41
5	M	ONI	FORING THE PROGRESS OF DNC OPERATION	43
	5.1	Moni	toring the Progress of DNC Operation	44
6	CU	J <b>ST(</b>	OMIZATION	48
	6.1	Custo	omizing General Settings for DNC Operation Management Package	49
		6.1.1	Setting general options for DNC Operation Management Package	51
		6.1.2	Setting soft keys	53
		6.1.3	Setting screen colors	56
		6.1.4	Setting the path number output option	57
		6.1.5	Setting the NC program transfer options	58
		6.1.6	Setting the messaging option	60
	6.2	Custo	omizing Screens	61
		6.2.1	Creating custom screens	62
		6.2.2	Changing the order in which screens appear	68
		6.2.3	Deleting screens	69
		6.2.4	Showing or hiding chapters	70
		6.2.5	Setting soft keys as empty	71
	6.3	Custo	omizing Screen Objects	73
		6.3.1	Creating custom screen objects	75
		6.3.2	Changing settings for screen objects	81
		6.3.3	Deleting screen objects	82
	6.4	Custo	omizing Message Languages	83
		6.4.1	Installing message languages	84
		6.4.2	Switching the message language	85
		6.4.3	Changing the order in which message languages are listed	87
		6.4.4	Uninstalling message languages	88
AI	PPE	NDI	X 1 BACKING UP THE SETTING FILE	89
AI	PPE	NDI	X 2 SWITCHING THE MESSAGE LANGUAGE	90
AI	PE	NDI	X 3 MESSAGE FILE GENERATOR	

# SETUP

This chapter explains how to set up the environment for operating DNC Operation Management Package and how to prepare DNC Operation Management Package for use.

# **1.1** Operating Environment

The software operating environment for DNC Operation Management Package is described below.

#### ♦ Computer

A personal computer connected to High Speed Serial Bus Type 2, the FS160i/180i/210i having personal computer functions, or Intelligent Terminal Type 2

Operating system

Windows 95, Windows 98, or Windows NT 4.0

#### NOTE

FANUC recommends that DNC Operation Management Package be operated under Windows NT 4.0.

When this software is used under Windows 95 or Windows 98, either pressing the [Ctrl]+[Alt]+[Delete] keys or the status of another application running simultaneously may cause Windows multitasking to stop. If this occurs, the transfer speed of NC programs is unpredictable. Before using the software under Windows 95 or Windows 98, thoroughly check its operation with regard to the above point.

• Environmental requirements

Windows 95 or Windows 98

- Pentium processor with clock frequency of 120 MHz or higher
- At least 32MB of memory

#### Windows NT 4.0

- Pentium processor with clock frequency of 166 MHz or higher
- At least 48MB of memory
- Recommended operating environment Windows 95 or Windows 98
  - Pentium processor with clock frequency of 166 MHz or higher
  - At least 48MB of memory

#### Windows NT 4.0

- Pentium processor with clock frequency of 200 MHz or higher
- At least 64MB of memory

#### NOTE

If the environmental requirements are not satisfied, the transfer speed of NC programs is unpredictable.

In an environment less than the recommended environment, NC programs may be transferred more slowly. Before using the software, adjust the transfer thread carefully. (See Section 6.1.5, "Setting the NC program transfer options.")

• Required free space on hard disk At least 30MB

# **1.2** Installing DNC Operation Management Package

This section describes how to install DNC Operation Management Package.

#### NOTE

Before DNC Operation Management Package can be installed, operations such as driver installation and setup must be performed. For details, refer to either of the following documents:

- Release Note (README.TXT) on FANUC Open CNC Drivers and Libraries for Windows<sup>®</sup> 95 Environment (A02B-0207-K730#ZZ07-1)
- Release Note (README.TXT) on FANUC Open CNC Drivers Disk (A02B-0207-K791#ZZ07-1)

#### Procedure

#### • Installing DNC Operation Management Package

- Insert the disk (A02B-0207-K760#ZZ07-1) into the floppy disk drive.
- 2. Click the [Start] button, then choose [Run].
- **3.** In "Open:", enter <drive-name>:SETUP, then click the <OK> button. (<drive-name> is the name of the 3.5-inch floppy disk drive.)
- 4. Perform installation according to the displayed messages.
- 5. Upon the completion of installation, restart the personal computer.
- **6.** Set the CNC parameters as described in Section 1.3, "Setting the CNC Parameters."

The setup program of DNC Operation Management Package installs the English version by default. To display non-English messages (Japanese, German, French, Italian, or Spanish), subsequently install the non-English message environment, as follows.

#### NOTE

Before installing the non-English message environment, start and terminate DNC Operation Management Package at least once.

For an explanation of how to start and terminate DNC Operation Management Package, see Section 2.2, "Starting and Terminating DNC Operation Management Package."

Non-English messages can be displayed only under Windows of the target language version. For example, Japanese messages can be displayed only under Japanese Windows and German messages can be displayed only under German

#### • Installing the non-English message environment

- 1. Insert the disk (A02B-0207-K760#ZZ07-5) into the floppy disk drive.
- 2. Click the [Start] button, then choose [Run].
- **3.** In "Open:", enter the command corresponding to the target language as listed below, then click the <OK> button.

Japanese	<pre><drive-name>: \JPN\ADDLANG</drive-name></pre>
German	<pre><drive-name>: \GER\ADDLANG</drive-name></pre>
French	<pre><drive-name>: \FRE\ADDLANG</drive-name></pre>
Italian	<pre><drive-name>: \ITA\ADDLANG</drive-name></pre>
Spanish	<pre><drive-name>: \SPA\ADDLANG</drive-name></pre>

<drive-name> is the name of the 3.5-inch floppy disk drive.

4. Perform installation according to the displayed messages.

# **1.3** Setting the CNC Parameters

This section describes how to set the CNC parameters required to use DNC Operation Management Package.

#### NOTE

If the CNC parameters are not set, screen display and DNC operation cannot be performed normally.

The CNC parameters can be set either by using Basic Operation Package 1 or directly with the CNC.

For an explanation of how to set the CNC parameters using Basic Operation Package 1, refer to the Basic Operation Package 1 operator's manual. For an explanation of how to set the parameters directly with the CNC, refer to the CNC operator's manual.

Set the following CNC parameters:

• FS15

Description	Set value
Use position display	No. 2204 bit $1 \rightarrow 1$
Use dynamic data display	No. 7613 bit $0 \rightarrow 1$
Use actual speed display	No. 7613 bit $1 \rightarrow 1$
Use spindle speed display	No. 7613 bit $2 \rightarrow 1$
Use program check	No. 7710 bit $7 \rightarrow 1$
Use new DNC functions	No. 7713 bit $0 \rightarrow 1$

Also, set the following parameters as necessary:

#### • For subprogram call operation

Description	Set value
Number of M code digits	No. 2030 $\rightarrow$ 0, or 3 or
	greater
Use subprograms in external memory	No. 7616 bit $3 \rightarrow 1$

#### • FS16/18/21

Description	Set value
Use new DNC functions	No. 8706 bit $1 \rightarrow 1$

Also, set the following parameters as necessary:

#### • For high-speed operation

Description	Set value
40KB buffer transfer	No. 8706 bit $0 \rightarrow 1$

#### • For subprogram call operation

Description	Set value
Number of M code digits	No. $3030 \rightarrow 0$ , or 3 or
	greater

# **1.4** Integration with Basic Operation Package 1

This section describes how to integrate DNC Operation Management Package with Basic Operation Package 1.

When DNC Operation Management Package is integrated with Basic Operation Package 1, the DNC Operation Management Package functions can be used on the Basic Operation Package 1.

#### NOTE

When DNC Operation Management Package and Basic Operation Package 1 are to be installed on the same personal computer, Basic Operation Package 1 version 1.4 or later should be used, regardless of whether these two packages are to be integrated.

#### **Procedure (for Basic Operation Package 1)**

- **1.** Start Basic Operation Package 1.
- Right-click the soft key area on the Basic Operation Package 1 screen. Alternatively, press the [Application] key on the keyboard (such as the Microsoft Natural keyboard or 109 keyboard). Alternatively, press [Shift]+[F10].

The following pop-up menu appears.



3. Choose [Setting...].

The [Setting] screen appears.



- **4.** Select the "General" tab and then check "Integrate with DNC Operation Management Package".
- 5. Exit and restart Basic Operation Package 1.

#### NOTE

When DNC Operation Management Package is integrated with Basic Operation Package 1, Basic Operation Package 1 is started by the procedure that starts DNC Operation Management Package.

# **1.5** Uninstalling DNC Operation Management Package

This section describes how to uninstall DNC Operation Management Package.

#### Procedure

- 1. Exit DNC Operation Management Package.
- 2. Click the [Start] button.
- 3. Point to [Settings...], then choose [Control Panel].
- 4. Execute [Add/Remove Programs].

The [Add/Remove Programs Properties] screen appears.

		_
Install/Un	ninstall   Windows Setup   Startup Disk	
<b>}</b>	To install a new program from a floppy disk or CD-ROI drive, click Install.	M
	Install	
3	The following software can be automatically removed Windows. To remove a program or to modify its install components, select it from the list and click Add/Remove.	by ed
FANUC	Basic Operation Package 1 CDNC Operation Management Package	
-	Add/ <u>R</u> emove.	

- 5. Select "FANUC DNC Operation Management Package".
- 6. Click the <Add/Remove...> button.

The uninstall function starts, asking you whether you really want to uninstall DNC Operation Management Package.

Confirm File Dele		12
Are you	you want to completely remove 'FANUE DNE Operation Management Package' and all of its component	67
	Lines Ho	

**7.** To uninstall DNC Operation Management Package, click the <Yes> button.

Subsequently, the uninstall function will ask several questions, such as whether to delete shared files. Perform uninstallation by clicking <Yes> or <No> as required.

# **2** BASIC KNOWLEDGE

This chapter provides basic information with which the user should be familiar before attempting to use DNC Operation Management Package.

# **2.1** DNC Operation

This section provides the basics of DNC operation.

In ordinary DNC operation, a CNC operates directly based on NC programs loaded into it from an external device such as a reader/puncher interface, remote buffer, or data server. With DNC Operation Management Package, NC programs can be stored on the personal computer hard disk for an open CNC, then sent directly from the personal computer to the CNC.

There are two DNC operation modes, described below. Both are supported by this software.

#### · Scheduled operation

NC programs should be stored on the personal computer in advance. The name and the repeat count of each NC program that will be executed should be listed in a schedule file. When a cycle start is performed for the NC, a program supply request is sent to the personal computer. In response, the personal computer sends the specified NC programs to the NC in succession.

#### • Subprogram call operation

Main programs and subprograms should be stored in advance on the NC and personal computer, respectively. During NC memory operation, when subprogram call block M198Pxxxx is executed, a program supply request is sent to the personal computer. In response, the personal computer sends subprogram xxxx.TXT to the NC.

# **2.2** Starting and Terminating DNC Operation Management Package

This section describes how to start and terminate DNC Operation Management Package.

## **2.2.1** Starting DNC Operation Management Package

This section describes how to start DNC Operation Management Package.

#### Procedure

- **1.** Click the [Start] button.
- Select [Program] and then [DNC Operation Management Package]. When High Speed Serial Bus multiconnection is being used, the node selection screen appears if a node number has not been specified for an argument for DNC Operation Management Package.

Node Selection	×
Available node list:	
Node0 : CNC-1 Node1 : CNC-2	ОК
	Cancel

When a node number has been specified as an argument for DNC Operation Management Package, the node selection screen does not appear.

The argument format is as follows:

WINDNC32 /NODE=<node-number>

<node-number> should be the number specified during installation of the driver for the High Speed Serial Bus.

**3.** Select the CNC to be connected, then click the <OK> button. The DNC Operation Management Package screen appears.

Made: Stabus	Memory Stop		Program Nerc	Cauros	. —
Selected file Execution file:			Sub Number	Source	
Vrogran progress Schedule	a.	5m P		Shattan	Envillan

#### NOTE

When Basic Operation Package 1 (A02B-0207-K750#ZZ07) version 1.4 or later is used, and the function for integration with DNC Operation Management Package is enabled, Basic Operation Package 1 is started instead of DNC Operation Management Package. (See Section 1.4, "Integration with Basic Operation Package 1.")

The DNC Operation Management Package screen can be displayed by using the following procedure:

#### Procedure



# 2.2.2 Terminating DNC Operation Management Package

How to terminate DNC Operation Management Package is described below.

#### Procedure

If the soft key is currently not displayed, press the function selection key
Press the soft key.

If a check mark is not placed against "Enable the language switch function" in the customization setting, DNC Operation Management Package is terminated.

If a check mark is placed against "Enable the language switch function" in the customization setting, the [Exit DNC Operation Management Package] screen appears.



#### NOTE

For details of the language switching settings, see Section 6.1.1, "Setting general options for DNC Operation Management Package."

**3.** Select [Exit DNC Operation Management Package?], then click the <Yes> button.

DNC Operation Management Package is terminated.

If [Switch language after restart?] is selected, clicking the <Yes> button restarts DNC Operation Management Package using the selected language.

This section describes the DNC Operation Management Package screens.

DNC Operation Management Package has the three types of screens shown below.

#### • [DNC Operation Monitor] screen

This screen is used to monitor the progress of DNC operation.

			2011 A.M.				
Mode		DNC	Prog	g an			
Status: Selected tile		Schedule	Mair	1			
		Schulus sch	Murr	ber 01010	l Se	urce: PC	
-		b a restar	5.0	6):			
Execution file Program progress:		Under 21010.bit	Nur	Number Source:			
		40%	a a construction of the second s				
Schedule							
Order	Program file	Size	Req. repeat	hlaw count	Starttime	Endtime	-
0001	1005.tat	1KB	1	1	15:40:54	15:40:54	
0002	1010.5:1	190KB	1	1	15:40:54		
0003	1011.54	190KB	3	D			
0004	5611.bd	67KB	2	0			- 11
00005	5615.bst	7KB	3	D			
uuua .		Company of a state	<i></i>				- 23
0006	6616.bd	691 KB					

#### • [DNC Schedule Setting] screen

This screen is used to set the file name, processing order, and repeat count of each NC program used for scheduled operation.

chedule					
Order	Program file	Size	Reg. repeat	Comment	3
1000	1005.fxt	1KB	1	(MAN)	
0002	101.0.1xt	190KB	3	(POXCAVITY ROUGH,	TOOL-DOR1.58
0003	1011.txt	190KB	3	(PCX CAVI/ROUGH02,"	ICIOL-CORI SB
0004	5611.1xt	67KB	2	(PCX/CAVITY ROUGH,	TOOL=DIOR58
0005	5615.1xt	7KB	1	(PCX CAVI,FINISH0S,T)	OOL=D1R0.5BE
0006	9616.1xt	691KB	5	(PCX CAVI,FINISH04, I)	DOL-D2R18EM)
0007	5613.1xt	951KB	3		
0008	56141xt	333KB	Loop		

#### • [DNC Sub Program Call Setting] screen

This screen is used to select the folder containing the subprogram files that will be used to subprogram calling.

Program folder Chibliotic		
FIA	Ste	Formert
1000000	2168	(ORCLE)
1005.bd	169	INANI
1010.04	19048	(PCX/CAVITY ROUCH, TOOL-DIR1.SEEN)
1011.bd	190KD	(PCX CAVI/ROUGH02,TOOL=DOR1.58EM)
4900.bd	248	(MODBLER+SERVER CAVITY G05.1)
6611.bt	67KB	(PCX/CAVITY /ROUGH, TOOL=D10R5BEM)
5812.bd	33KB	(PCX/CAVITY, 2nd ROUGH, TOOL = D6R38BND
5613.bd	951 KB	
5814.bd	383MB	
5615.1:4	714日	(PCX_CAVI/FINISH03,TOOL=01R0.SEEM)
5816.bt	691 KB	(PCX CAVI,FINISH04,TOOL=D2R1BEM)

# **2.4** Window Names and Functions

This section describes the name and functions of each window displayed by DNC Operation Management Package.

DNC Operation Management Package displays a parent window which consists of one or more child windows. Each child window has setting, display, and other functions.



#### Explanation

- Parent window
  - Main window of DNC Operation Management Package
  - Selecting a soft key at the bottom of the parent window displays the corresponding child window within the parent window.
  - Multiple child windows can be displayed within the parent window.
  - The top of the parent window indicates the function name corresponding to the child window which is currently active and statuses such as the CNC mode. The displayed statuses and their meanings are as follows:

#### <u>FS15</u>

(1) Automatic operation mode selection

Status	Meaning
****	Not selected
MDI	MDI mode
Tape	TAPE mode
Mem	MEMORY mode
Edit	EDIT mode
Thin	TEACH in mode

Status	Meaning
****	Not selected
Ref	REFERENCE mode
Inc	INCREMENTAL mode
Hndl	HANDLE mode
Jog	JOG mode
AngJ	ANGULAR JOG mode
IHnd	INCREMENTAL + HANDLE mode
JHnd	JOG + HANDLE mode

(2) Manual operation mode selection

(3) Automatic operation status

Status	Meaning
Stop	Stopped
Hold	Halted
Strt	Starting
MStr	Numeric JOG mode
Rstr	Restarting a block
PRsr	Restarting a program
NSrc	Searching for a sequence number
Rset	Resetting
HPCC	RISC operation

#### (4) Program editing status

Status	Meaning
****	No editing
Edit	Editing
Srch	Searching
Vrfy	Verifying
Cond	Condensing
Read	Inputting data
Pnch	Outputting data

#### (5) Axial movement and dwell status

Status	Meaning
****	Others
Motn	Moving along an axis
Dwel	Dwelling
Wait	Waiting (only for 2-path lathe systems)

#### (6) M, S, T, and B function status

Status	Meaning
Fin	Waiting for processing

#### (7) Emergency stop status

Status	Meaning
Emg	Emergency stop

#### (8) Nonvolatile memory write status

Status	Meaning
****	No write
Writ	Writing

#### (9) Label skip status

Status	Meaning
****	Label skip disabled
LSk	Label skip enabled

#### (10) Alarm status

Status	Meaning
Alam	Alarm issued

#### (11) Warning message status

Status	Meaning
Warn	Warning issued

#### (12) Battery status

Status	Meaning
Batt	Battery of nonvolatile memory and absolute
	position detector requires replacement

#### FS16/18/21

(1) Automatic/manual mode selection (Cont'd)

Status	Meaning
****	Not selected
MDI	MDI mode
Mem	MEMORY mode
Edit	EDIT mode
Hndl	HANDLE mode
Jog	JOG mode
TJog	TEACH in JOG mode
THnd	TEACH in HANDLE mode

Status	Meaning
Inc	INCREMENTAL mode
Ref	REFERENCE mode
Rmot	SCHEDULE mode
Test	TEST operation mode

Automatic/manual mode selection (Cont'd)

#### (2) Automatic operation mode

Status	Meaning
****	Resetting
Stop	Stopped
Hold	Halted
Strt	Starting
MStr	Returning (tool retract and return), repositioning,
	or operating based on a manual numeric command

#### (3) Program editing status

Status	Meaning
****	No editing
Edit	Editing
Search	Searching
Output	Outputting data
Input	Inputting data
Compare	Comparing
LblSkp	Label skip enabled
Restrt	Restarting a program
PTRR	Tool retract and return mode
HPCC	RISC operation (only for machining center
	systems)
Revers	Reverse movement during retrace (only for
	machining center systems)
Retry	Re-forward movement during retrace (only for
	machining center systems)
RvEnd	Reverse movement completed during retrace (only
	for machining center systems)
Handle	Handle interruption applied (only for machining
	center systems)
WrkOfs	Workpiece origin offset measurement mode (only
	for machining center systems)
SHPCC	Simple high-precision contour control applied
	(only for machining center systems)
WrkSft	Work shift write mode (only for lathe systems)
Offset	Tool length offset measurement mode (for
	machining center systems)/Tool length offset write
	mode (for lathe systems)
## (4) Axial movement and dwell status

Status	Meaning
****	Others
Motn	Moving along an axis
Dwel	Dwelling

## (5) M, S, T, and B function status

Status	Meaning
Fin	Waiting for processing

## (6) Emergency stop status

Status	Meaning
Emg	Emergency stop
Rset	Reset

## (7) Alarm status

Status	Meaning					
Alam	Alarm issued					
Batt	Battery of nonvolatile memory and absolute					
	position detector requires replacement					

For details of each status, refer to the operator's manual provided with the CNC being used.

## • Child window

- Window which has the setting, progress display, and other functions for DNC operation
- Chapter and function

A collection of child windows is called a chapter.

A collection of chapters is called a function.

DNC Operation Management Package is configured with the function and chapter hierarchy shown below.



Functions and chapters can be selected using the soft keys at the bottom of the parent window.

## NOTE

This section describes the soft keys that are used with DNC Operation Management Package. When DNC Operation Management Package is integrated with Basic Operation Package 1, the soft key layout differs from that shown in this section.

For an explanation of how to integrate DNC Operation Management Package with Basic Operation Package 1, see Section 1.4, "Integration with Basic Operation Package 1."

- Soft key
  - Key-like field used to display a child window. A soft key can be selected either by clicking the image on the screen or pressing the corresponding key on the keyboard.

In the standard state, where no soft key customization has been performed, the soft keys are assigned to the following keyboard keys. The subsequent descriptions in this manual assume the standard soft key assignment.



#### NOTE

The soft keys can be customized. For details, see Section 6.1.2, "Setting soft keys."

• There are the following three types of soft key states: "Function selection," "chapter selection," and "operation selection." For example, the soft keys used for [Setting] are switched as follows:



The displayed soft keys are for the currently active child window.

## NOTE

The subsequent descriptions in this manual refer to the selection of a soft key as simply "pressing a soft key," meaning either clicking the soft key image on the screen or pressing the corresponding key on the keyboard.

## **2.5** Displaying Version Information

This section describes how to display the version information for DNC Operation Management Package, for maintenance and other purposes.

## Procedure

 Right-click the soft key area. Alternatively, press the [Application] key on the keyboard (such as the Microsoft Natural keyboard or 109 keyboard). Alternatively, press [Shift]+[F10].

The following pop-up menu appears.



 Choose [About DNC Operation Management Package...]. The [About DNC Operation Management Package] screen appears.

About I	ONC Operation Ma	nagement P	ackage	×
Бор	FANUC DNC Operat For Windows 95 Env Version 1.1.1	ion Managem vironment	ent Package	
	Copyright(C) 1994-19 Copyright(C) 1991-19	398 FANUC L1 398 Microsoft (	FD. Corporation.	
	CNC type:	16M		
	CNC soft series:	B0B1		
	CNC soft version:	0025		
	Control axis count:	3		
			OK	

The following information is displayed:

- Version information for DNC Operation Management Package
- CNC type
- CNC software series
- CNC software version
- Number of controlled axes

# 3 SCHEDULED OPERATION

This chapter describes how to set and perform scheduled operation.

## **3.1** Performing Scheduled Operation

This section describes how to perform scheduled operation.

#### **Scheduled** operation

NC programs should be prepared on the personal computer hard disk in advance. The name, processing order, and repeat count of each NC program should be listed in a schedule file. A start signal from the NC causes the personal computer to send the NC programs to the NC in the sequence defined by the schedule.

## Procedure

- Prepare NC programs for scheduled operation on the personal computer hard disk. (See Section 3.2, "NC Programs for Scheduled Operation.")
- 2. On the [DNC Schedule Setting] screen, create a new schedule file. List the file name, processing order, and repeat count of each NC program in the new file. Alternatively, select an existing schedule file. (See Section 3.3 "Setting Scheduled Operation.")

## NOTE

Before starting the machine, ensure that the file name, processing order, and repeat count of each NC program that will be used for DNC operation are set correctly on the [DNC Schedule Setting] screen.

- **3.** Start the machine.
  - FS15
    - <1> Set parameter No. 0020 to 15.
    - <2> Set TAPE mode.
    - <3> Perform a cycle start.
  - FS16/18/21
    - <1> Set MEM mode.
    - <2> Set bit 7 of signal G42 (DMMC signal) to 1.
    - <3> Perform a cycle start.

## NOTE

The procedure for starting scheduled operation depends on the machine model. For details, refer to the operator's manual provided with the machine being used.

 Monitor the progress of operation on the [DNC Operation Monitor] screen. (See Section 5.1, "Monitoring the Progress of DNC Operation.")

## **3.2** NC Programs for Scheduled Operation

This section describes the format of NC programs for scheduled operation. These programs must have already been prepared on the personal computer hard disk before scheduled operation can be started.

## Explanation

The following are the requirements for NC programs for scheduled operation, which should be prepared on the personal computer in advance.

• File name

Each file name must consist of either of the following, depending on whether the NC uses 4-digit or 8-digit program numbers.

4-digit number + extension TXT

8-digit number + extension TXT

- File format
  - Each NC program must start with {LF}, or % + {LF}.
  - The body of each program can start with a program code other than its program number and can contain binary code.
  - Provided that the program is not the last program in the schedule, miscellaneous function codes M02 and M30 contained in a program may be replaced with space characters so that scheduled operation can continue without interruption. (See Section 6.1.5, "Setting the NC program transfer options.")

Example)





## **3.3** Setting Scheduled Operation

This section describes how to set scheduled operation.

## Procedure

- When Basic Operation Package 1 is not used
  1. If the soft key is not currently displayed, press the function selection key
  2. Press the soft key.
  - If the [DNC Schedule Setting] screen is currently not displayed,
     press the chapter selection key

4. Press the soft key.

The [DNC Schedule Setting] screen appears.

- When DNC Operation Management Package is integrated with Basic Operation Package 1
  - 1. If the soft key is not currently displayed, press the function selection key



3. If the [DNC Schedule Setting] screen is not currently displayed,

press the chapter selection key
does not appear, press
Schdule
Schdule
Schdule
Soft key.

The [DNC Schedule Setting] screen appears.

Rected	tile:	Schule.sch		
Order	Program file	Size	Reg. regeat	Comment
0001	1005.bd	1KB	1	(MAN)
0062	1010.04	190KB	1	(POXICAVITY ROUGH, TOOL-D3R1.58.
E000	1011.t.t	190KB	3	(PCX CAVI/ROUGH02,TOOL=D3R1.SB
0004	5611.bd	67KB	2	(PCXICAVITY ROUGH TOOL=D10R58
0005	5615.bd	7KB	1	(PCK CAVI,FINISH03,TOOL-D1R0.58E
0005	3615.bd	591KD	5	(PCX CAVI/INISH04,TOOL=D2710EM)
0007	5613.Dd	951KB	3	
0008	5614.54	38369	Loop	

## Explanation

• [DNC Schedule Setting] screen

This screen is used to list the file name, processing order, and repeat count of each NC program that will be used for scheduled operation in a schedule file.

Opr

To set a schedule file, press the operation selection key The operation soft keys appear.

Fot File Save	Add Rep Program Co	peat Delete sunt Program	Chp
---------------	-----------------------	-----------------------------	-----

For details of each function, see the description below.

## NOTE

During DNC operation, the schedule setting screen cannot be used.

## **3.3.1** Creating a new schedule file

This section describes how to create a new schedule file that lists the file name, processing order, and repeat count of each NC program that will be used for scheduled operation.

## Procedure

1. If the [DNC Schedule Setting] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 3.3, "Setting Scheduled Operation" to display the [DNC Schedule Setting] screen.

Selected 1e Schedule: Croler Program file Size Req. repeat Comment	Sic DNC Sche	e stule Setting	LSk	
Criter Program file Size Req. repeat Comment	Selected	se -		
	Order	Program file	Size Req. repent Comment	
				- 1
				- 1
				- 1
Fie SeveAu. Reves Defen	n.	Ceve		



2. Press the \_\_\_\_\_\_ soft key.

The [DNC Schedule Setting - File] screen appears.

NC Schedu Look jn:	le Setting - File	•		
				T teres Torol
ïle <u>n</u> ame:				<u>O</u> pen
iles of type:	DNC schedule files (*.sch	i)	-	Cancel

**3.** Enter a new schedule file name in "File name:", then click the <Open> button.

The following screen appears.



**4.** Click the <Yes> button.

A new schedule file is created.

5. Press the \_\_\_\_\_\_ soft key.

The [DNC Schedule Setting - Add Program] screen appears.

DNC Sched	ule Setting - Add Program		2 ×
Look jn:	🔁 Dnc	- 🖻 🖻	
<ul> <li>■ 1002.txt</li> <li>■ 1005.txt</li> <li>■ 1010.txt</li> <li>■ 1011.txt</li> <li>■ 1011.txt</li> <li>■ 4900.txt</li> <li>■ 5611.txt</li> <li>■ 5612.txt</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>■ 5613.txt</li> <li>■ 5614.txt</li> <li>■ 5615.txt</li> <li>■ 5616.txt</li> </ul>		
File <u>n</u> ame: Files of <u>type</u> :	NC program files (*.txt)		<u>O</u> pen Cancel

6. Select an NC program that will be used for scheduled operation, then click the <Open> button.

The program is added to the schedule file.

Selected	rie İschulu	e ach			
Order	Program No	Stre	Beq.repeat	Constant	
					- 1
					- 1

7. Click to highlight the "Order" of the NC program, then press the Repeat



The [DNC Schedule Setting - Repeat Count] screen appears.

DNC Schedule S	etting - Repea	t Count	×
Repeat Count:	J	ОК	
		Cancel	

8. Enter the execution count in "Repeat Count:", then click the <OK> button.

#### NOTE

If 0 is entered in "Repeat Count:", the NC program is not executed.

If a negative value is entered in "Repeat Count:", the NC program is executed endlessly. (In "Req. repeat" of the program list, "Loop" is displayed.)

## 9. Repeat steps 5 to 8 until the schedule file is completed.

Scheidule			-	
Under	Program tie	310	Red repeat	Connert
0001	100510	199		(NER) (DOVE AVITY BOLICH TOOL-D3RI, SR
0002	101010	19040	9	(PCAREPHT / COURT, FOULAU 3RD 3BL,
0004	584144	6269	3	CONCAMINATIVE ROLICH TOOL JOINT SD.
0005	56454-4	269	-	COCK CASA ENISHING TOOL + MIRO SHE
0006	58181st	694149	5	(PCK CAM ENSHIN TOOL = D/R18EM)
0007	561 3 tot	951148	3	granding indirective burnering
8000	561 4 1st	38348	Loop	

10. To delete an unnecessary NC program, click to highlight the Delete

Program

"Order" of the program, then press the \_\_\_\_\_\_ soft key.

## **3.3.2** Opening an existing schedule file

This section describes how to open an existing schedule file.

#### Procedure

1. If the [DNC Schedule Setting] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 3.3, "Setting Scheduled Operation" to display the [DNC Schedule Setting] screen.

NUC D ding - D DNC Sek	NC Operation Manage INC Schedule Setting Schedule Setting	nent Package - CNC-1 0 0100
Sch	edule Idar Program Na	Size Req.repeal Connent
File	Sere.	Add Report Deere Freger Scient Proger

File Soft key.

The [DNC Schedule Setting - File] screen appears.

DNC Schedu	le Setting - File			2 ×
Look jn:	🔄 Dnc	-	E	
schdule.so	ch			
1	-			
File <u>n</u> ame:	schdule.sch			<u>O</u> pen
Files of <u>type</u> :	DNC schedule files (*.sch)		•	Cancel

- 3. Select a schedule file from "Look in:", then click the <Open> button.
- **4.** Edit the schedule file as necessary. For an explanation of how to edit files, see Section 3.3.1, "Creating a new schedule file."

## **3.3.3** Saving a schedule file under a new name

This section describes how to save an existing schedule file under a new name.

#### Procedure

- 1. If the [DNC Schedule Setting] screen is not currently displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 3.3, "Setting Scheduled Operation" to display the [DNC Schedule Setting] screen.
- **2.** Follow the procedure described in Section 3.3.2, "Opening an existing schedule file" to open a schedule file.





**3.** Press the \_\_\_\_\_\_ soft key.

The [DNC Schedule Setting - Save as] screen appears.

DNC Schedu	le Setting - Save as				? ×
Save jn:	🔄 Dnc	-	E		
schdule.se	ch				
File name:	schdule sch		_	20	Save
nie <u>H</u> ame.			_		<u>2</u> 470
Save as type:	DNC schedule files (*.sch)		<u> </u>		Cancel

4. Enter a new file name in "File name:", then click the <Save> button.

## 4 SUBPROGRAM CALL OPERATION

This chapter describes how to set and perform subprogram call operation.

## **4.1** Performing Subprogram Call Operation

This section describes how to perform subprogram call operation.

#### Subprogram call operation

Main programs and subprograms should be stored in advance on the NC and personal computer, respectively. During NC memory operation, when subprogram call block M198Pxxxx is executed, the personal computer sends subprogram xxxx.TXT to the NC.

#### Procedure

- Prepare NC programs for subprogram call operation on the personal computer hard disk. (See Section 4.2, "NC Programs for Subprogram Call Operation.")
- On the [DNC Sub Program Call Setting] screen, select the folder containing the NC programs that will be used for subprogram call operation. (See Section 4.3 "Setting Subprogram Call Operation.")

#### NOTE

Before starting the machine, ensure that the subprograms to be called from the main programs are displayed on the [DNC Sub Program Call Setting] screen.

- **3.** Start the machine.
  - FS15
    - <1> Set parameter No. 0020 to 15.
    - <2> Set MEM mode.
    - <3> Perform a cycle start.
  - FS16/18/21
    - <1> Set parameter No. 0020 to 15.
    - <2> Set MEM mode.
    - <3> Set bit 7 of signal G42 (DMMC signal) to 0.
    - <4> Perform a cycle start.

## NOTE

The procedure for starting subprogram call operation depends on the machine model. For details, refer to the operator's manual provided with the machine being used.

**4.** Monitor the progress of operation on the [DNC Operation Monitor] screen. (See Section 5.1, "Monitoring the Progress of DNC Operation.")

## 4.2 NC Programs for Subprogram Call Operation

This section describes the format of NC programs for subprogram call operation. These programs must have already been prepared on the personal computer hard disk before subprogram call operation can be started.

## Explanation

The following are the requirements for NC programs for subprogram call operation, which should be prepared on the personal computer in advance.

• File name

Each file name must consist of either of the following, depending on whether the NC uses 4-digit or 8-digit program numbers.

4-digit number + extension TXT8-digit number + extension TXT

- File format
  - Each NC program must start with % + {LF}.
  - The body of a NC program must start with its program number, which is identical to the file name (O1234 or O12345678, for example).
  - Each NC program must end with  $M99 + {LF} + \%$ .
  - The body of any NC program can contain binary code.

## Example)





## **4.3** Setting Subprogram Call Operation

This section describes how to set subprogram call operation.

## Procedure

- When Basic Operation Package 1 is not used Setting 4 soft key is not currently displayed, press the If the 1. Fct E function selection key Setting 4[ Press the soft key. 2. If the [DNC Sub Program Call Setting] screen is not currently 3. Chp 0 displayed, press the chapter selection key M198 4 4. Press the soft key. The [DNC Sub Program Call Setting] screen appears.
- When DNC Operation Management Package is integrated with Basic Operation Package 1
  - 1. If the soft key is not currently displayed, press the function selection key
  - 2. Press the soft key.

3. If the [DNC Sub Program Call Setting] screen is not currently

displayed, press the chapter selection key soft key does not appear, press

**4.** Press the soft key.

The [DNC Sub Program Call Setting] screen appears.

iogram folder: :10NC\			
62	See.	A	
000000	Size 21kB	(CIRCUE)	
1005 bd	168	(Malba	
1010.5:1	19068	(PCK/CAVITY ROUGH TOOL=COR1 SEEN)	
1011.bst	190KB	(PCX CAVI.ROUGH02.TOOL-D3R1 5BBM)	
th:t ODEA	258	(MODELER+SERVER CAVITY G05.1)	
5611.bd	67KB	(PCX/CAVITY, ROUGH, TOOL=D/(0RSBEM)	
5612.bd	33KB	(PCK/CAVITY, 2nd ROUGH, TOOL=D6R38EN()	
5613.bd	951KB		
5614.hd	383KB		
5615.bd	7KB	(PCX CAM, FINISH03, TOOL=D1R0.5BEM)	
5616.bd	591KB	(PCX CAVI, FINSH04, TOOL-D2R1BBM)	

## Explanation

• [DNC Sub Program Call Setting] screen

This screen is used to specify the folder containing the NC programs that be used for subprogram call operation, and to display a list of the NC programs within the specified folder.

To set subprogram call operation, press the operation selection key  $$\operatorname{\mathsf{Opr}}$$ 

0

The operation soft key appears.



For details of the function, see the description below.

#### NOTE

During DNC operation, the subprogram call setting screen cannot be used.

## **4.3.1** Specifying a folder containing subprograms

Specify the folder containing the NC program files that will be used for subprogram call operation.

## Procedure

1. If the [DNC Sub Program Call Setting] screen is not currently displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 4.3, "Setting Subprogram Call Operation" to display the [DNC Sub Program Call Setting] screen.

Contra de la	sint new LSR	
DNC Sub Program	i Call Setting	
CL		
File	Size Connent	



2. Press the \_\_\_\_\_ soft key.

The [DNC Sub Program Call - Folder Setting] screen appears.

DNC SubProgram Call - Folder Setting	
- 1	
23	
🖻 📹 English (C:)	
Dnc	
😟 🧰 Mmc	
- My Documents	
🗄 🧰 Program Files	
- 🗑 Recycled	
- 🔁 Setup	_
🗄 🧰 Temp	
- 🔁 Waste	
🗄 🧰 Windows	<b>.</b>
	- <u> </u>
	Lancel

**3.** Select a folder containing NC programs, then click the <OK> button.

A list of the files with the TXT extension in the specified folder is displayed.

Program folder: C:1DNCL			
8.	Site	Connect	_
10003252	21109	(CROLE)	
1005.bd	1109	MAN	
1010.t.t	190KB	PCK/CAVITY ROUGH TOOL=D3R1 588/b	
1011.tst	190KB	(PCX CAMIROUGH02,TOOL-D3R1,SEEM)	
4900.t.t	2103	(MODELER+SERVER CAMITY G05.1)	
5611.bd	67409	(PCK/CAVITY ROUGH, TOOL=D10R5BEN)	
5612.Dt	33KB	(PCX/CAVITY, 2nd ROUGH, TOOL=D6R3BEN)	
56131st	951 KB		
SE14.bd	383109		
5615.bd	7108	(PCX CAMIFINISH03,TOOL=D1R0.5BEM)	
5616.bd	691 KB	(PCX CAVI,FINISH04,TOOL=D2R18BM)	

## 5 MONITORING THE PROGRESS OF DNC OPERATION

This chapter describes how to monitor the progress of DNC operation.

## **5.1** Monitoring the Progress of DNC Operation

This section describes the [DNC Operation Monitor] screen, which is used to monitor the progress of DNC operation.

Once scheduled operation or subprogram call operation has started, the [DNC Operation Monitor] screen can be used to monitor the progress of DNC operation.

## Procedure

When Basic Operation Package 1 is not used
1. If the Program soft key is not currently displayed, press the function selection key .
2. Press the Soft key.

The [DNC Operation Monitor] screen appears.

- When DNC Operation Management Package is integrated with Basic Operation Package 1
  - 1. If the soft key is not currently displayed, press the function selection key
  - 2. Press the soft key.
  - 3. If the [DNC Operation Monitor] screen is not currently displayed,



The [DNC Operation Monitor] screen appears.

				2					
Node:		DNC	-Prog	Program					
Stabus:		Schedule	Mair	Man					
Selected	tie	Schdule.sch	- Nur	iber: 01010	50	urce: PC			
	12								
Execution file:		OPDET 2.1010.COL	Nur	iber:	50	urce:			
Frogram	progress	40%							
Schedule	¢								
Order	Program file	Size	Req. repeat	Now count	Start time	Endline			
0001	1005.txt	1KB	1	1	15:40:54	15:40:54			
	1010.bit	190KB	1	1	15:40:54				
0002	1 2 4 4 h h h	190KB	3	D					
0002	TUTTER	100 M 10	2	0			- 11		
0002 0003 0004	S611151	67KB		0			- 10		
0002 0003 0004 0005	5611.5d 5615.5d	5/KB 7KB	1				- <b>19</b>		
0002 0003 0004 0005 0005	5611.5± 5615.5± 5616.5±	57KB 7KB 691KB	1	0			공		

Example of the screen during scheduled operation

Example of the screen during subprogram call operation

E FANU	C Basic C	<b>Iperation Pac</b>	kage - CNC	04						
- Prog	em - DNC (	Operation Monit	я					0 561	2 N 00103	
Man		t Mol	n ***	****	ŧ.					
1<1>0	NC Oper	ation Monitor							12	
1	Mode		DNC		-Program	3			-	
1	Status		Sub program call		Main			11-1-11		
1	Selected	file:			Nunber:		Seurced	NC		
3	Execution	file:	5612.txt		Sub	0000	Course	pr.		
	Programs	xopress:		03	- Homeen			-		
3	Schooldo									
	Order	Program file		Size R	eq.repeat N	low count is	Startime I	Endime	1	
		a sasarata ayaa ayaa				NAMES OF CONTRACTOR				
				172			-			
Fet									Chp	
									<b>1</b>	

## Explanation

- Displayed data
  - Mode:

The mode of automatic operation is indicated.

Displayed value	Meaning
DNC	Indicates that DNC operation mode is set.
Memory	Indicates that NC memory operation mode is set.

• Status:

The status of automatic operation is indicated.

Displayed value	Meaning
Stop	Indicates that the NC has stopped.
Schedule	Indicates that scheduled operation is being
	performed.
Sub program call	Indicates that subprogram call operation is
	being performed.
(Blank)	Indicates that the system is in a status other
	than the above.

• Selected file:

During scheduled operation, the name of the currently selected schedule file is displayed.

## • Execution file:

During scheduled operation, the file name and processing order of the currently running NC program are displayed.

During subprogram call operation, the file name of the currently running NC program is displayed.

## • Program progress:

The percentage of data transferred for the currently running NC program is displayed.

• Number: (Main Number, Sub Number)

For the "Main:" item, the number of the currently running main program is displayed. For the "Sub:" item, the number of the currently running subprogram is displayed.

• Source:

For the "Main:" item, the location of the currently running main program is displayed. For the "Sub:" item, the location of the currently running subprogram is displayed.

V	
Displayed value	Meaning
NC	Indicates that the currently running program is
	stored in the program memory of the NC.
PC	Indicates that the currently running program is
	stored on the personal computer hard disk.

• Schedule:

During scheduled operation, a list of the NC programs that will be used is displayed. When the repeat count of an NC program is set as endless (loop), the displayed current count value ranges from 1 to 9999. If the repeat count goes beyond this range, - is displayed.

## NOTE

- On the [DNC Operation Monitor] screen, the progress of NC program transfer to the NC by this software is indicated, not the progress of DNC operation of the NC.
- Once all NC programs have been transferred to the buffer of the NC, "Source:" changes from PC to NC and "Mode:" changes from DNC to Memory. This occurs even during NC DNC operation.
- The values in "Main Number", "Sub Number", and "Source:" are estimated based on the statuses of the NC and this software, and are not always correct.

# 6 CUSTOMIZATION

This chapter describes how to customize DNC Operation Management Package.

## **6.1** Customizing General Settings for DNC Operation Management Package

This section explains the basic customization of DNC Operation Management Package.

## NOTE

Customization results are stored in the setting file. It is recommended that a backup of the setting file be made to guard against possible data loss.

For details of the setting file, see Appendix 1, "BACKING UP THE SETTING FILE."

## Procedure

Right-click the soft key area. Alternatively, press the [Application] key on the keyboard (such as the Microsoft Natural keyboard or 109 keyboard). Alternatively, press [Shift]+[F10].

The following pop-up menu appears.

	Setting
	Language Switcher Setting
	About DNC Operation Management Package
	Cascade
	Tile <u>H</u> orizontal
	Tile <u>V</u> ertical
~	1 <1>DNC Operation Monitor

2. Choose [Setting...].

The [Setting] screen appears.



## Explanation

Select the "General", "Soft key", "Color", "Path", "DNC", or "Message" tab to make the desired settings.

## • General

Sets general options for DNC Operation Management Package.

## • Soft key

Sets soft keys.

- Color Sets the background color of each area within a parent window.
- Path

Sets the path number output option.

## • DNC

Sets the NC program transfer options.

• Message

Sets the option for messaging during DNC operation.

For details, see the description below.

## 6.1.1 Setting general options for DNC Operation Management Package

This section describes how to set the general options for DNC Operation Management Package.

## Procedure

- 1. If the [Setting] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.1, "Customizing General Settings for DNC Operation Management Package" to display the [Setting] screen.
- **2.** Click the "General" tab.



#### Explanation

The setting items are as follows:

• Lock all screen position and size.

Selecting this item prevents the changing of the position and size of a window.

• Display date and time.

Selecting this item causes the date and time to be displayed in the upper-right corner of a parent window.

• Correct CNC time to PC one when startup.

Selecting this item causes the CNC time to be synchronized with the personal computer time when the operator starts DNC Operation Management Package.

For the FS15 CNC, this item is disabled.

- Display the spindle load meter.
   Selecting this item causes the spindle load meter to be displayed in the middle of a parent window.
- To be foreground at alarm. Selecting this item causes the alarm message screen to appear in the foreground when an alarm condition occurs.
- Display the title window when startup. Selecting this item causes the title to be displayed when the operator starts DNC Operation Management Package.
- Confirm when exit.

Selecting this item causes the confirmation screen to appear when the operator exits from DNC Operation Management Package.

• Exit Windows when exit.

Selecting this item enables the operator to terminate Windows when exiting from DNC Operation Management Package.

• Enable the language switch function.

Selecting this item enables the language switching option when the operator exits DNC Operation Management Package.

For details of how to switch between languages, see Section 6.4.2, "Switching the message language."

## 6.1.2 Setting soft keys

This section describes how to set the soft keys.

## Procedure

- 1. If the [Setting] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.1, "Customizing General Settings for DNC Operation Management Package" to display the [Setting] screen.
- **2.** Click the "Soft key" tab.

etting	×
General Soft key Color Path DNC Message	
🖵 Use CNC MDI key.	
🔽 The return soft key is always left side.	
The soft key count is 10.	
Proceed to next state of the soft key to select.	
F11 = Shift+F1, F12 = Shift+F2.	
🧮 Return key to space key on button.	
F Set ON/OFF by key 1/0 on check box.	
OK Can	cel

## Explanation

The setting items are as follows:

• Use CNC MDI key.

Selecting this item enables a function soft key to be selected using the MDI keys that generate the equivalent key codes of [0] to [9] keys on the numeric keypad of the full keyboard. The correspondence between the soft keys and keypad keys is as follows:



The correspondence between the soft keys and keyboard function keys is switched to that shown below:



• The return soft key is always left side.

Clearing this item enables the soft keys to be switched as follows:

• Function soft keys



Pressing the soft key or [F1] key switches to the chapter soft keys.

Pressing the soft key or [F12] key switches to the function soft keys.

Fct

• The soft key count is 10.

Selecting this item sets the soft key count to 10.



Use the keyboard function keys to switch between the function, chapter, and operation soft keys.

Standard switching mode is as follows:

- Function soft keys Pressing the [F12] key switches to the chapter soft keys.
- Chapter soft keys Pressing the [F11] key switches to the function soft keys. Pressing the [F12] key switches to the operation soft keys.
- Operation soft keys Pressing the [F11] key switches to the chapter soft keys.
- Proceed to next state of the soft key to select.

Selecting this item causes, for example, the operation soft keys to appear automatically when a chapter soft key is selected.

• F11 = Shift+F1, F12 = Shift+F2

Selecting this item defines the following key combinations:

Key combination	Equivalent
[Shift] + [F1]	[F11]
[Shift] + [F2]	[F12]

• Return key to space key on button.

Selecting this item enables the return key to act as the space key when the buttons are used.

• Set ON/OFF by key 1/0 on check box.

Selecting this item enables a check box to be selected or cleared using the [1] or [0] key, respectively. Note that this function is disabled on the [Setting] screen.

## 6.1.3 Setting screen colors

This section describes how to set the background color of each area within a parent window.

## Procedure

- 1. If the [Setting] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.1, "Customizing General Settings for DNC Operation Management Package" to display the [Setting] screen.
- **2.** Click the "Color" tab.

Lolor type:	I itle line	
Color value:	&HFFFF	<u></u>
Preview		
	Title line	
_	Status line	_
	Base screen	
E	Soft key	

**3.** From the "Color type:" list, select an area in which the background color is to be changed.

Alternatively, click the text in an area within the preview display.

4. Enter a hexadecimal RGB value in "Color value:"

Alternatively, press ...., then select a color from the [Color] screen, as shown below.

Color	î X
<u>B</u> asic colors:	
Custom colors:	
Define Contrast Colours	. 1
Derine Custom Colors >	>
OK Cancel	

## Explanation

The background colors of the following areas within a parent window can be set:

- Title line
- Status line
- Parent window base screen
- Soft key area

## 6.1.4 Setting the path number output option

This section describes how to set the path number output option.

#### Procedure

- 1. If the [Setting] screen is not currently displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.1, "Customizing General Settings for DNC Operation Management Package" to display the [Setting] screen.
- 2. Click the "Path" tab.

General Soft key Color Path DNC Message	etting				
	General Soft key Color	Path umber:	DNC	Messag	e]
	no addess to output pari m	umber.		1	

## Explanation

The setting item is as follows:

• I/O address to output path number:

Set the I/O address used to output a path number in a bit pattern.
## 6.1.5 Setting the NC program transfer options

This section describes how to set the NC program transfer options.

#### Procedure

- 1. If the [Setting] screen is not currently displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.1, "Customizing General Settings for DNC Operation Management Package" to display the [Setting] screen.
- **2.** Click the "DNC" tab.

Priority:	Low		- <del>7</del> -	High
Interval for DNC	start (ms):		32	
Interval for DNC	(ms):		32	
M-code check -				
📕 Ignore M02, I	v130 and %.			
Character count	from top of file	to stop ch	eck:	
			110	
Character count	from end of file	e to start ch	eck:	

#### Explanation

The setting items are as follows:

• Priority:

During DNC operation, NC programs are transferred by the corresponding Windows subthread. Use this item to specify the priority of the Windows thread in round robin scheduling.

Moving the slider to the left sets a shorter execution time for the transfer thread, but does not have any detrimental effect on responses from the user interface. Moving the slider to the right sets a longer execution time for the transfer thread, but results in slower responses from the user interface.

#### • Interval for DNC start (ms):

Specify an interval between checks of DNC operation requests from the NC to the personal computer. After a DNC operation request has been checked, the thread sleeps for the time specified here (ms) until the next DNC operation request is checked.

The smaller this value, the faster the responses to DNC operation requests from the NC, but the slower the responses from the user interface.

#### • Interval for DNC (ms):

Specify an interval between transfers of NC program. After an NC program has been transferred, filling the operation buffer, the thread sleeps for the time specified here (ms) until the next NC program is transferred.

The smaller this value, the faster the NC program transfer (depending on the NC programs), but the slower the responses from the user interface.

#### • Ignore M02, M30 and %:

Some CAD systems may create an NC program such that M02 or the like is automatically set at the end of the program. This item is used to enable scheduled operation without modifying such NC programs.

When this item is selected, NC programs are transferred to the NC during scheduled operation, with their M02, M30 and % converted to space characters. After the last program in a schedule has been transferred, the M code identical to the one that was last converted to a space character is transferred. The range within a program in which conversion to space characters is performed should be specified in "Character count from top of file to stop check:" and "Character count from end of file to start check:", which are described below.

This setting does not affect subprogram call operation.

• Character count from top of file to stop check:

When "Ignore M02, M30 and %:" is selected, specify the number of characters, from the start of a program, for which M02, M30, and % are converted to space characters. This setting is used to prevent % at the start of the program from being sent.

This setting does not affect subprogram call operation.

• Character count from end of file to start check:

When "Ignore M02, M30 and %:" is selected, specify the number of characters, from the end of a program, for which M02, M30, and % are converted to space characters. This setting is used to prevent a miscellaneous function code and % at the end of the program from being sent.

This setting does not affect subprogram call operation.

## 6.1.6 Setting the messaging option

This section describes how to set the option for messaging during DNC operation.

#### Procedure

- 1. If the [Setting] screen is not currently displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.1, "Customizing General Settings for DNC Operation Management Package" to display the [Setting] screen.
- **2.** Click the "Message" tab.

tting		
General   Soft key   Color   Path └── Notify DNC reset/stop request.	DNC	Message
	ОК	Cance

#### Explanation

The setting item is as follows:

• Notify DNC reset/stop request.

Selecting this item causes the following screen to appear when the NC makes a reset or stop request during DNC transfer.

DNC Me	ssage 🔣
8	Path 1: CNC requested to reset/stop. DNC was stopped.

## 6.2 Customizing Screens

This section explains screen customization, including the creation of custom chapters.

The subsequent screen customization descriptions apply to a system in which DNC Operation Management Package is integrated with Basic Operation Package 1. Screen customization for a system in which only DNC Operation Management Package is used is basically the same as that described below.

#### NOTE

Customization results are stored in the setting file. It is recommended that a backup of the setting file be made to guard against possible data loss.

For details of the setting file, see Appendix 1, "BACKING UP THE SETTING FILE."

#### Procedure

- 1. Start DNC Operation Management Package or Basic Operation Package 1.
- **2.** Right-click the soft key area. Alternatively, press the [Application] key on the keyboard (such as the Microsoft Natural keyboard or 109 keyboard). Alternatively, press [Shift]+[F10].

 Setting...

 Screen Customization...

 Language Switcher Setting...

 About Basic Operation Package...

 Cascade

 Tile Horizontal

 Tile Vertical

 ✓

 1<1>0ver All Position

 2<2>Modal

 3<3>Actual Speed

The following pop-up menu appears.

**3.** Choose [Screen Customization...]. The [Screen Customization] screen appears.

Position	Add Chapter	Screen Icon Event	
Setting	edd Selver	Function name tor title:	42
System	I mean ban	6	Postion
Gtaph	EmplyIten	Function name to soft key	<b>]#</b> 3
Custom		Chapter name for tillu	Postion
		Uneptier name for soft key	r
		Man screen object ID	
		Screen direct ID	
		6	Edit streen object
	Luitem	🗖 The chaze is state	
	Downiten		

#### Explanation

The following types of screen customization can be performed:

- Creating custom screens
- Changing the order in which screens appear
- Deleting screens
- Showing or hiding chapters
- Setting soft keys as empty

For details, see the description below.

## **6.2.1** Creating custom screens

This section describes how to combine screens to create a custom chapter.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Screen Customization] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.2, "Customizing Screens" to display the [Screen Customization] screen.

Poston	Add Chapter	Screen Icon Event	
Setting	edits or	Function name for title:	42
1 System	I mean fam		Position
1 Graph	Emptylien	Function name for soft key	#3
1 Custom		Disprensione for fille	Poston
		Unapter name for soft key	r
		Man priver object ID.	
		Screen object ID	
		c 📃	Edit streen object
	Luitem	🗖 The charles in stable	
	Down Item		

2. In the screen layout tree, select the icon for an unused function.



**3.** In "Function name for title:", enter the text to be displayed on the title bar of a parent window. In "Function name for soft key:", enter the text to be displayed on a function soft key.

and I con I count	
Function name for title:	Favorite Screen
	Favorite Screen
Function name for soft key:	Favor
	Favor

4. Click the Add Chapter button.

A chapter is added to the selected function.

Function name for title:	Favorite Screen
	Favorite Screen
Function name for soft key:	Favor
	Favor
Chapter name for title:	New Chapter
	New Chapter
Chapter name for soft key:	New
	New
Main screen object ID:	Allpos

**5.** In "Chapter name for title:", enter the text to be displayed on the title bar of a child window. In "Chapter name for soft key:", enter the text to be displayed on a chapter soft key.

Function name for title:	Favorite Screen
	Favorite Screen
Function name for soft key:	Favor
	Favor
Chapter name for title:	DNC Operation Check
	DNC Operation Check
Chapter name for soft key:	DNC Check
	DNC Check

**6.** Double-click the folder icon to view the screen to be added. Then, click the + sign to view the name of the child window to be displayed.

) Position	Add Chapter
) Program	Add Screen
i Message	Delete Item
Graph	Empty Item
Custom	
Favor	
🗁 DNC Check	
Allpos	



**7.** Click the child window. Then, from the "Screen object ID:" list, select a screen object to be displayed in the child window.

Function name for title:	Favorite Screen
	Favorite Screen
Function name for soft key:	Favor
	Favor
Chapter name for title:	DNC Operation Check
	DNC Operation Check
Chapter name for soft key:	DNC Check
	DNC Check
Main screen object ID:	Allpos
Screen object ID:	Allpos
	Ed Fo
The chapter is visible.	PRestart Btlofst Ophis PMCStat
	DNCMoni

In this example, the [DNC Operation Monitor] screen is selected.

8. To add another child window, click the

Add Screen button.

🗅 Position	Add Chapte
🖆 Program 🛱 Setting	Add Screen
🛅 System 🛅 Message	Delete Item
🖻 Graph 🖻 Custom	Empty Item
➢ Favor È── ➢ DNC Check I DNCMoni I Allpos	

**9.** From the "Screen object ID:" list, select a screen object to be displayed in the child window in the same way as in step 7.

Screen Icon Event	
Function name for title:	Favorite Screen
	Favorite Screen
Function name for soft key:	Favor
	Favor
Chapter name for title:	DNC Operation Check
	DNC Operation Check
Chapter name for soft key:	DNC Check
	DNC Check
Main screen object ID:	DNCMoni 🗾
Screen object ID:	Relative

Function name for title:	Favorite Screen
	Favorite Screen
Function name for soft key:	Favor
	Favor
Chapter name for title:	DNC Operation Check
	DNC Operation Check
Chapter name for soft key:	DNC Check
	DNC Check
Main screen object ID:	DNCMoni 🖉
Screen object ID:	DNCMoni Relative FS
	Edit screen object

**10.** From the "Main screen object ID:" list, select the main screen for the chapter.

#### NOTE

If the feature specified for the main screen is unavailable on the CNC side, the chapter is not displayed.

11. To set a chapter display option, select the "Event" tab.



- 12. Select an item or items to be set. The following items can be set:
  - Change the chapter at alarm. Selecting this item causes automatic switching to this chapter when a CNC alarm condition occurs.
  - Change the chapter at operator message. Selecting this item causes automatic switching to this chapter when an operator message is issued.
  - Change the chapter at PMC alarm. Selecting this item causes automatic switching to this chapter when a PMC alarm condition occurs.

**13.** Select the newly created chapter in the screen layout tree, then select the "Icon" tab.

creen Customization		
Position Program Setting System	Add Chapter Add Screen	Scenen Itom Event
11 Message 12 Graph 12 Eustein 14 Caston 14 Cast <mark>(NCC Desc)</mark> 14 Cast <mark>(NCC Desc)</mark> 14 Caston	Empty-Ram	Presource number: 101 <>     Icon Na     File name:      Praviaw
- Cit Relative - Cit FS		
	Up top	1
		OK. Cancel

14. Specify an icon to be displayed on the function soft key.

The resource number of a built-in icon or the name of a file containing an icon can be specified.

#### NOTE

A file that can be used for an icon is referred to as an icon file (file with the .ICO extension). Icon files can be created using a tool such as the icon editor supplied with Windows.

**15.** Click the <<u>OK</u>> button on the [Screen Customization] screen.



soft key shows the added screens.

		The Distance Lake		
ici pi DNUC Upp faite Mitos internet lite bacar tor file bacar tor file bacar tor file bacar tor file bacar tor file bacar tor file bacar to f	Viney Bin Bin Bin Bin Bin Bin Bin Bin Bin	Pagiere Main Auster Sarace Auster Hansor Searce Regiseed Newwork Sections	Eatine	0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
				2019/2010/21

## 6.2.2 Changing the order in which screens appear

This section describes how to change the order in which the function, chapter, or child window screens appear.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Screen Customization] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.2, "Customizing Screens" to display the [Screen Customization] screen.

stion	Add Chapter	Screen Ican Event	
ogram Kting	Add Screen	Function name for title:	#2
stern	II sole ''sa	1	Position
aph	EmplyItem	Function name for soft key.	#3
istom var		Chapter name for tile:	Position
		Ebapter name for infl key:	
		Nain screen object ID	
		Screen object (D)	
	1.50022	•	Edit screen object
		🗖 The obspects with the	
	Down Item		

**2.** In the screen layout tree, select a function, chapter, or child window object to be moved to another position.

Screen Customization				
n Program E Setting System				
<ul> <li>Message</li> <li>Graph</li> <li>Custom</li> <li>Favor</li> </ul>				
Click the Up Item	or	Down Item	button to m	ove the

selected object to the desired position.



3.

4. Click the <OK> button on the [Screen Customization] screen.

#### NOTE

If a chapter is selected, it cannot be moved to another function. If an object displayed in a child window is selected, it cannot be moved across chapters.

## **6.2.3** Deleting screens

This section describes how to delete chapter or child window screens.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Screen Customization] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.2, "Customizing Screens" to display the [Screen Customization] screen.

Postion	Add Chapter	Screen Icon Event	
I Setting	Cill Screen	Function name for title:	#2
System Mersage	Dele Le	ſ	Position
Giaph	Empty Item	Function name for soft key:	#3 Forthers
Favor		Chapter name for title	
		Chapter name for softkee	[
		Main screen object (D)	
		Smisse object (D:	
	ifinm	E The chepter s visit e	Edit voreen abject.
	Down Rem	in the system of a second s	

**2.** In the screen layout tree, select a chapter or child window object to be deleted.

Position	Add Chapte
⊞ C All ⊞ C Relative	Add Screen
⊞ ⊡ Absolute ⊞ ⊡ Machine	Delete Item
Distance     Handle     Monitor	Empty Item
🗅 Program	
🛅 Setting	
🛅 System	
🛅 Message	
🗅 Graph	
🛅 Custom	
🗅 Favor	

- 3. Click the Delete Item button.
- 4. Click the <OK> button on the [Screen Customization] screen.

The selected chapter or child window object is deleted.

### 6.2.4 Showing or hiding chapters

This section describes how to show or hide chapters.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Screen Customization] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.2, "Customizing Screens" to display the [Screen Customization] screen.

Position	Add Chapter	Soreen Ican Event	
a Program Setting	e.dd Source	Function name for title	#2
D System	Jelete ftem		Position
3 Graph	Emptulitem	Function name for soft keys	#3
b Dustom B Fevor		Chapter name for fills	Pasition
		Chapter name for soft key	
		Mein screen object ID	
		Screen object ID:	-
	Jp le		Edit scieen object
	Down Item	L neo aperò cobe	

**2.** In the screen layout tree, select a chapter object to be shown or hidden.



The check box for showing or hiding a chapter is enabled.



#### Explanation

Whether a chapter is shown can be determined using the following item:

• The chapter is visible.

Clearing this item hides a specified chapter. Those screens that are not normally used, such as the maintenance screen, can be erased temporally.

## 6.2.5 Setting soft keys as empty

This section describes how to set function or chapter soft keys as empty.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Screen Customization] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.2, "Customizing Screens" to display the [Screen Customization] screen.

Position	Add Chapter	Screen Ican Event	
Setting	Add Source	Function name for title:	#2
System	Jelete fbem		Position
Graph	Emptulitem	Function name for soft keys	#3
Duston Favor		Chapter name to title	Pasition
		Chapter name for tolt key	
		Mein screen object ID	
		Sicreen object (D)	
	J <sub>F</sub> , e	E The chapter is value	Edi screen objeci
	Down Item		

**2.** In the screen layout tree, select a function or chapter to be set as empty.

D Program	6
	Add Screen
🗅 System 🗅 Message	Delete Item
Custom	Empty Item

3. Click the Empty Item button.

The selected function or chapter is set as empty.

Add Screen
Delete Item
Empty Item

## 6.3 Customizing Screen Objects

This section describes how to customize screen objects.

#### NOTE

Customization results are stored in the setting file. It is recommended that a backup of the setting file be made to guard against possible data loss.

For details of the setting file, see Appendix 1, "BACKING UP THE SETTING FILE."

#### NOTE

When customizing screen objects, the operator must be familiar with Windows and OLE automation.

#### Procedure

 Right-click the soft key area. Alternatively, press the [Application] key on the keyboard (such as the Microsoft Natural keyboard or 109 keyboard). Alternatively, press [Shift]+[F10].

The following pop-up menu appears.



2. Choose [Screen Customization...]. The [Screen Customization] screen appears.

Program	Add Chapter	Screen Icon Event	
) secong ) System	Add Screen	Function name for title:	#4
	If some stars		Program
	Empty Rem	Function name for soft key.	#5
1		Chepter name for file:	Program
		Elsepter nome for soft key:	
		Nain screen object ID	
		Screen object ID:	
	The second se		Edit screen object
	Downitem	Theorem with	
		5750	1250 - 2007 - 15 - 15

3. Click the Edit screen object... button.

The [Edit Screen Object] screen appears.

Edit Scr	een Obje	ect					×
Screen	object ID:			Ī	DNCMor	n	-
				New ID		D elete ID	)
Object	Icon	CNC	Color	1			
_ Obje	ect type -						-1
•	CNC Scre	en (For	ground (	only)			
0	CNC Scre	en (Bac	kgroun	d enable)			
0	OLE cont	ainer sc	reen				
0	EXE file						
OLE	ProgID or	EXE file	e name:				
PR0	GRAM.DI	VCOpM	oniCtrl				
Objec	st name:						
#136	6						
DNC	Operation	Monito	r				
<u></u>							
			1	пк		Cancel	- 1
				OIC		Carloor	

#### Explanation

The following types of screen object customization can be performed:

- Creating custom screen objects
- Changing settings for screen objects
- Deleting screen objects

For details, see the description below.

## **6.3.1** Creating custom screen objects

This section describes how to create custom screen objects.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Edit Screen Object] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.3, "Customizing Screen Objects" to display the [Edit Screen Object] screen.

creen object ID:	DNCMoni		
	New ID	Delete ID	
Ibject   Icon   CNC	Color	22	
Object type			
CNC Screen (Forg	round only)		
C CNC Screen (Back	(ground enable)		
C OLE container scr	een		
C EXE file			
OLE ProolD or EXE file	name:		
PROGRAM.DNCOpMo	niCtrl		
Object name:			
#136			
DNC Operation Monitor			

2. Click the New ID... button.

The [New ID] screen appears.

New ID		<u> </u>
NoulD		ОК
NEWID.	P.	Cancel

- **3.** Enter a unique ID in "New ID:". Click the <OK> button.
- **4.** Specify an object type.

Dbject Con CNC Color	
Object type	
<ul> <li>CNC Screen (Forground only)</li> </ul>	
C CNC Screen (Background enable)	
OLE container screen	
C EXE file	

One of the following object types can be specified:

#### CNC Screen

A CNC screen is an OLE object. Normally, FANUC provides objects of this type.

CNC screens are classified as follows:

Screen that is executable only when it is in the foreground. Screen that is also executable even when it is in the background.

Those screens that are set as "foreground only" are loaded or unloaded upon each screen switching. The cursor position and other information is not maintained.

Those screens that are set as "background enable" are not unloaded upon screen switching, and therefore remain in memory. The cursor position and other information is maintained.

(Examples are screens for tool offset data or custom macro variables.)

#### NOTE

To prevent excessive memory or resource consumption, the number of screens to be set as "background enable" must be kept to a minimum.

#### • OLE container screen

An OLE container screen is used to display or edit general OLE objects.

Select an OLE container screen for those operations that involve OLE objects for which an appropriate menu or tool bar is to be displayed in a parent window, such as visual editing using Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, or other OLE-enabled application.

#### • EXE file

An EXE file is a general Windows application such as Notepad. This type of application is not displayed in a child window, and runs independently of DNC Operation Management Package.

- Object
   Icon
   CNC
   Color

   Object type

   CNC Screen (Forground only)
   CNC Screen (Background enable)
   OLE container screen
   EXE file

   OLE ProgID or EXE file name:

   PROGRAM.DNCOpMoniCtrl
   Object name:
   #136
   DNC Operation Monitor

   Discretion Monitor
- 5. Enter a value in "OLE ProgID or EXE file name:".

When "CNC Screen" or "OLE container screen" is selected for the object type, enter OLE ProgID of the OLE object to be used. If a null string is entered as OLE ProgID, no information is displayed in the child window.

When "EXE file" is selected for the object type, enter the EXE file name (preferably the full path name).

**6.** In "Object name:", enter text to be displayed on the title bar of the child window.

opor	Icon   CNC   Color	
Obje	t type	-
œ	NC Screen (Forground only)	
С	NC Screen (Background enable)	
С	ILE container screen	
C	×E file	
OLE F	rogID or EXE file name: iRAM.DNCOpMoniCtrl	
рно		
рно Објес	name:	
Dbjec #136	name:	_

**7.** Select the "Icon" tab.

Object Icon CNC Colo	r	
Icon resource		
Resource number:	157	< >
C Icon file	1928	
File name:		
Preview		

**8.** Specify an icon to be displayed on the title bar of the child window. The resource number of a built-in icon or the name of a file containing an icon can be specified.

#### NOTE

A file that can be used for an icon is referred to as an icon file (file with the .ICO extension). Icon files can be created using a tool such as the icon editor supplied with Windows.

9. Select the "CNC" tab.



**10.** Select a CNC path to be processed on the screen.

One of the following items can be selected:

• Default path

Sets the screen for the path displayed on the status line.

• Path 1

Sets the screen for CNC path 1.

• Path 2

Sets the screen for CNC path 2.

• Path 3

Sets the screen for CNC path 3.

• Path 4

Sets the screen for CNC path 4.

• Loader

Sets the screen for the loader control.

• Independent of path

Sets the screen as the path-independent screen.

#### NOTE

When "EXE file" is selected for the object type, this item need not be set.

11. Select the "Color" tab.



**12.** Specify the background color of a screen.

Enter a hexadecimal RGB value in "Background color:".

Alternatively, press ..., then select a color from the [Color] screen, as shown below.



#### NOTE

- When "EXE file" is selected for the object type, this item need not be set.
- The background color can be changed only for those screen objects that have the BackColor property. Currently, not all CNC screens have the BackColor property. (Determine whether the specified screen object has the BackColor property by using the Visual Basic property window or by some other method.)
- When &HFFFFFFF is specified for the background color, the default background color is set.
- **13.** Click the <OK> button on the [Edit Screen Object] screen. A screen object is created.

## 6.3.2 Changing settings for screen objects

This section describes how to change the settings of screen objects.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Edit Screen Object] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.3, "Customizing Screen Objects" to display the [Edit Screen Object] screen.

creen object ID:		DNC	1oni
		New ID	Delete ID
)bject   Icon   CN	IC Colo	or	
- Object type			
CNC Screen	(Forground	i only)	
C CNC Screen	(Backgrou	nd enable)	
C OLE containe	er screen		
🔿 EXE file			
OLE ProalD or EXI	- file name	r	
PROGRAM.DNCC	)pMoniCtrl		
Object name:			
#136			
DNC Operation Mo	nitor		

2. From the "Screen object ID:" combo box, select the ID of a screen to be edited.

Edit Screen Object	1
Screen object ID:	DNCMoni 💌
Object Con CNC Color	ID DNCSchedule DNCSubpro DNCDiag DNCMoni
Object type	

- **3.** Change the desired setting items. For details of the setting items, see Section 6.3.1, "Creating custom
- **4.** Click the <OK> button on the [Edit Screen Object] screen. This completes the editing of the screen object.

screen objects."

## 6.3.3 Deleting screen objects

This section describes how to delete screen objects.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Edit Screen Object] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.3, "Customizing Screen Objects" to display the [Edit Screen Object] screen.

ocreen object ID:	DNCM	loni 🚽
	New ID	Delete ID
Object   Icon   CNC   I	Color	
- Object type		
CNC Screen (Forgr	ound only)	
C CNC Screen (Back)	ground enable)	
C OLE container scre	en	
C EXE file		
OLE ProgID or EXE file n	ame:	
PRUGRAM.DNCUpMon	nCtrl	
- (h)		
Object name:		
Object name: #136		

**2.** From the "Screen object ID:" combo box, select the ID of the screen to be deleted.

MyO	ject 🔽	
Mauri D	1. A DATE AND A DAT	
INEW ID	Delete ID	
object is curr	ently selected in a	a chapter, the
s disabled, a	nd therefore the	object cannot
	object is curre s disabled, a	object is currently selected in a s disabled, and therefore the

- 3. Click the Delete ID button.
- **4.** Click the <OK> button on the [Edit Screen Object] screen. This completes the editing of the screen object.

## 6.4 Customizing Message Languages

This section describes message language customization, including the installation of two or more message languages in DNC Operation Management Package.

#### NOTE

Before installing a new language environment, message files and subfolders must be created.

For an explanation of how to create message files and subfolders, see Appendix 2, "SWITCHING THE MESSAGE LANGUAGE" and Appendix 3, "MESSAGE FILE GENERATOR."

#### NOTE

Before installing a language environment, the operator must start and terminate DNC Operation Management Package at lest once. For an explanation of how to start and terminate DNC Operation Management Package, see Section 2.2, "Starting and Terminating DNC Operation Management Package."

#### Procedure

Right-click the soft key area. Alternatively, press the [Application] key on the keyboard (such as the Microsoft Natural keyboard or 109 keyboard). Alternatively, press [Shift]+[F10].

The following pop-up menu appears.

	Setting
	Screen Lustomization Language Switcher Setting
	About DNC Operation Management Package
	Cascade
	Tile <u>H</u> orizontal
-	l ile Vertical
*	1 <1>DNC Operation Monitor

2. Choose [Language Switcher Setting...].

The [Language Switcher Setting] screen appears.

Default)	New	Application directory:	
iennan	Delete	Language Setting	PERATION MANAGEMENT
		Name:	(Default)
	П	Message files sub dir.:	Message
	Op	INI files sub dir.:	Ini

#### Explanation

The following types of message language customization can be performed:

- Installing new message languages
- Changing the order in which message languages are listed
- Uninstalling message languages

For details, see the description below.

## 6.4.1 Installing message languages

This section describes how to install message languages in DNC Operation Management Package.

Once two or more message languages have been installed in DNC Operation Management Package, switching between these languages is enabled.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Language Switcher Setting] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.4, "Customizing Message Languages" to display the [Language Switcher Setting] screen.

Language Switcher	Setting		
(Default) German	New Delete	Application directory: C:\PROGRAM FILES\DNC OPERATION MANAGEMENT	
	Up	Name: Message files sub dir.: INI files sub dir.:	(Default) Message
	Down		

2. Click the New... button.

The [New Language Name] screen appears.

×
ОК
Cancel

3. Enter the name of a language to be installed, then click the <OK> button.

The new language is added to the message language list.

Language Swi	tcher Setting		x
(Default) German French	Delete	Application directory: C:\PROGRAM FILES\DNC (	DPERATION MANAGEMENT
	Down	Name: Message files sub dir.: INI files sub dir.:	French Message Ini
			OK Cancel

4. Specify a subfolder in which message files are to be installed, and a subfolder in which INI files are to be installed. Click the <OK> button.

The message language is installed.

#### 6.4.2 Switching the message language

This section describes how to switch the message language.

Once two or more message languages have been installed in DNC Operation Management Package, switching between these languages is enabled.

#### Procedure

1. Follow the procedure described in Section 6.1, "Customizing General Settings for DNC Operation Management Package" to display the [Setting] screen.



2. Select the "Enable the language switch function." check box. Click the <OK> button.



**4.** Press the **soft key**.

The [Exit DNC Operation Management Package] screen appears.



5. Select "Switch language after restart?".

Select the desired language, then click the  ${<\!\!\mathrm{Yes}\!\!>\!\!\mathrm{button}}.$ 

DNC Operation Management Package is restarted automatically, then the language is switched to the selected language.

## 6.4.3 Changing the order in which message languages are listed

This section describes how to change the order in which message languages are listed.

For switching between message languages, these languages are usually listed in the order in which they were installed. If many message languages have been installed, those which are used most frequently can be placed at the top of the list to enable their easy selection.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Language Switcher Setting] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.4, "Customizing Message Languages" to display the [Language Switcher Setting] screen.

(Default) German French	New Delete	Application directory: C:\PROGRAM FILES\DNC OPERATION MANAGEMENT Language Setting	
	llo	Name: Message files sub dir.:	French Message
	Down	INI files sub dir.:	Ini

2. Select a language to be moved to another position.



L	anguage Switcher
Ton Chican	(Default) French German

**4.** Click the <OK> button.

## 6.4.4 Uninstalling message languages

This section describes how to uninstall message languages from DNC Operation Management Package.

#### NOTE

When a message language is uninstalled, the language is deleted from the message language list, but its message files and INI files are not deleted.

#### Procedure

1. If the [Language Switcher Setting] screen is currently not displayed, follow the procedure described in Section 6.4, "Customizing Message Languages" to display the [Language Switcher Setting] screen.

Language Swi	tcher Setting		×
(Default) German French	Delete	Application directory: C:\PROGRAM FILES\DNC C Language Setting	DPERATION MANAGEMENT
		Name:	French
		Message files sub dir.:	Message
	Down	INI files sub dir.:	Ini
			OK Cancel

2. Select a language to be uninstalled.



- 3. Click the \_\_\_\_\_\_ button.
  - The selected language is deleted from the list.



**4.** Click the <OK> button. The language is uninstalled.

## APPENDIX BACKING UP THE SETTING FILE

This section describes the setting file.

The settings for DNC Operation Management Package are stored at the location indicated below. A backup copy of the original information should be kept to guard against errors.

[HKEY\_CURRENT\_USER\Software\VB and VBA Program Settings\WinDNC?] key of the registry (? represents a numeric or blank character.)

The registry file can be saved by choosing [Registry] and [Export Registry File ...] of the registry editor (REGEDIT.EXE) in the Windows directory.

# APPENDIX **Z** SWITCHING

LANGUAGE

THE

## MESSAGE

This section describes the switching of the language in which messages are displayed.

#### • Switching the language

DNC Operation Management Package can be installed with multiple language environments, allowing screens to be displayed in any desired language. This, however, does not mean that any language environment can be used with Windows of any version. For example, the Japanese environment can be used only on a system on which the Japanese version of Windows is running. IME is needed to input Japanese and Japanese fonts are needed to display Japanese characters. The caret must be placed appropriately.

DNC Operation Management Package is initially installed with the English-language environment. If DNC Operation Management Package is placed in the C:\Program Files\DNC Operation Management Package folder, the English-language message files are set in the C:\Program Files\DNC Operation Management Package\Message folder and the English INI files in the C:\Program Files\DNC Operation Management Package\Ini folder, as indicated below:

C:\Program Files\DNC Operation Management Package

\Message (English message files) \Ini (English INI files)

A new language environment can be created by creating new subfolders for message files and INI files in C:\Program Files\DNC Operation Management Package. To create the Japanese-language environment, for example, create the following subfolders:

C:\Program Files\DNC Operation Management Package



Copy the message files and INI files and set the subfolder information in DNC Operation Management Package. Then, the Japanese-language

environment can be used.

#### NOTE

- The message files and INI files can be placed in a single folder.
- The folders containing the English message files and English INI files can neither be deleted nor renamed.
- Message file

This binary file stores the messages that can be displayed.

The message file can be created by the message file generator provided with DNC Operation Management Package.

For an explanation of the procedure for creating the message file, see Appendix 3, "MESSAGE FILE GENERATOR."

INI file

This text file stores the messages that can be displayed on the parameter screen and diagnosis screen of Basic Operation Package 1. By default, DNC Operation Management Package contains no INI files.

The messages can be displayed in the desired language by replacing that part enclosed by a pair of double quotation marks ("") with the desired language.

#### • Adding a desired language environment

A desired language environment can be added to DNC Operation Management Package either manually or by using ADDLANG.EXE, an installer.

#### NOTE

Before adding a desired language environment, start and terminate DNC Operation Management Package at least once. For an explanation of how to start and terminate DNC Operation Management Package, see Section 2.2, "Starting and Terminating DNC Operation Management Package." This appendix describes the general procedure for adding a language environment. For an explanation of the specific procedure for adding a Japanese, German, French, Italian, or Spanish environment, see Section 1.2, "Installing DNC Operation Management Package."

- Manually adding a language environment
  - 1. Create the message files and INI files for the desired language.
  - **2.** Create subfolders for storing the message files and INI files within the folder of DNC Operation Management Package.
  - **3.** Copy the message files and INI files into the subfolders created in step 2, above.
  - 4. Start DNC Operation Management Package, then display the [Language Switcher Setting] screen.(For details of this operation, see Section 6.4, "Customizing

(For details of this operation, see Section 6.4, Customizing Message Languages.")

- 5. Click the <New...> button, enter the language name, then click the <OK> button.
- 6. Specify the names of the subfolders created in step 2, above, for "Message files sub dir." and "INI files sub dir." To place the message files in the C:\Program Files\DNC Operation Management Package\Message folder, which is in the C:\Program Files\DNC Operation Management Package folder of DNC Operation Management Package, for example, specify MESSAGE.
- 7. Click the <OK> button.
- Using the installer to add a language environment

The manual procedure described above can be simplified by using the installer (ADDLANG.EXE).

- 1. Create the message files and INI files for the desired language.
- **2.** Copy ADDLANG.EXE and its setting file SETUP.LST. Copy the contents of the \JPN\ folder on the disk (A02B-0207-K760#ZZ07-5).
- **3.** Edit SETUP.LST as described below.
  - Substitute the character strings of the [Message] section. This section contains the following items:

[Message]

"key" = "character-string"

Substitute only the "character-string" part, leaving the "key" part as is.

• Edit the [Setup] section.

The list below indicates the contents of the [Setup] section.

Item	Description
App	Application name (This must not be edited.)
Name	Specifies a language name.
MsgDir	Specifies the subfolder into which message files are
	copied.
IniDir	Specifies the subfolder into which the INI files are
	copied.

To place the message files in the C:\Program Files\DNC Operation Management Package\Message folder included in DNC Operation Management Package folder C:\Program Files\DNC Operation Management Package, specify MsgDir = MESSAGE.

• Edit the [Files] section.

In the [Files] section, specify the files to be added, in the following format:

Filex=filename

Each file specification line must begin with the keyword File. As the argument x, specify a number. From the beginning of this section, specify the numbers in ascending order, starting from 1. Numbers cannot be skipped.

(Example) [Files] File1=msg\_bop.msg File2=msg\_menu.msg File3=param16m.ini

The file name extension indicates the destination folder to which the file is added.

Extension	Destination folder
MSG	Message file folder specified in the [Setup] section
INI	INI file folder specified in the [Setup] section
DLL	Windows system folder

**4.** Copy ADDLANG.EXE, SETUP.LST, and other files to be added into the same folder on the same disk.

When ADDLANG.EXE is executed, the files of the desired language are installed.

#### • Referencing a message file when customizing the screen

A message ID in a message file can be input using the dialog box of the screen customize function. Input the message ID in the following format, in the text box displayed for character string specification.

#[decimal] (Example: #1234)
When the input value is smaller than 10000, the corresponding message ID is referenced in the ID MSG\_MENU group (MSG\_MENU.MSG file). When the input value is greater than or equal to 10000, the message ID of the input number minus 10000 is referenced in the ID MSG\_USER group (MSG\_USER.MSG file).

## NOTE

- FANUC does not provide message file MSG\_USER.MSG of group ID MSG\_USER.
- No message ID can be input for the character string of the following items:
  - Screen object ID
  - OLE ProgID

## APPENDIX **3** MESSAGE FILE GENERATOR

This section describes how to create a message file.

DNC Operation Management Package manages the messages to be displayed in a binary file. The messages are stored in message files. These message files are usually stored in the Message folder included in the folder in which DNC Operation Management Package is installed.

With DNC Operation Management Package, the user can change the message to be displayed by replacing the message files.

This section describes how to create a message file using the message file generator (MSGGEN32.EXE).

For an explanation of how to change the message to be displayed, see Appendix 2, "SWITCHING THE MESSAGE LANGUAGE."

• Files related to the message file generator

The MSG folder on the disk (A02B-0207-K760#ZZ07-5) contains the following files that are required by the message generator.

- MSGPRM.DAT : Sample message generator parameter file. This text file contains the correspondence between languages, paths, group IDs, and file names. The file format is described below under "File Format."
- \*.TXT : Message text file. This text file contains message IDs and messages (in different languages). The file format is described below under "File Format."
- MSGGEN32.EXE: Message generator. This program automatically creates a message file and message ID header file from the message generator parameter file and message text file.

• File	format
--------	--------

The message generator parameter file and message text file have the following formats:

 \* Message generator parameter file (MSGPRM.DAT) In this text file, the correspondence between languages, paths, group IDs, and file names is specified. The data in this file has the following format:

! Folders to save translated message files (Binary). #LANG !Language name & path (max 20 group) eng C:\Bop\Eng !English jpn C:\Bop\Jpn !Japanese <1> ger C:\Bop\Ger !German fre C:\Bop\Fre !French spa C:\Bop\Spa !Spanish ita C:\Bop\Ita !Italian #END ! Folders to save message files (ASCII). #TEXT\_PATH C:\Bop\Msgfile -<2> #END ! Folders to save headers file which are made by translating message files. **#HEADER PATH** C:\Bop\Include \_\_\_\_ <3> #END ! Define symbols which is defined in the header files. #GID !Group-ID name : message file name MSG\_GID\_BOP msg\_bop \_\_\_\_\_ MSG\_GID\_BOPUTL m\_chkio MSG\_GID\_CNCERR m\_cncerr <4> MSG\_GID\_MENU msg\_menu MSG\_GID\_DNCOP m\_dncop -#END

## Explanation

<1> Message file path

A language name and the path of the message file of the language are specified.

The full path name must be specified. Different paths must be specified for different languages.

The language name is used as a language ID in the message file.

When adding a new language, specify the language name and path here.

## <2> Message text file path

The path of the message text files is specified. The full path name must be specified.

## <3> Message ID header file path

The path of the message ID header files is specified. The full path name must be specified.

## <4> Group ID and message text file name

A group ID and the corresponding message text file name (without the path and extension) are specified.

Usually, this part need not be changed. When adding a new screen, for example, add the corresponding group ID and message text file name here.

## NOTE

The path specified in the message generator parameter file must be created in advance.

If the specified path cannot be found, the following error occurs when the message generator is executed:

Error No2: Can't open file\_name

Note the following restrictions:

- A character string following an exclamation mark (!) is assumed to be a comment.
- Any intervening blanks or tabs are ignored.
- Each language name must be specified using three characters. Up to 20 languages can be entered.
- Each path name can be specified using up to 256 characters.
- Each group ID can be specified using up to 16 characters.
- Each message text file name can be specified using up to eight characters.
- Any number of groups can be specified.

 Message text file (The extension is always .txt.) In this text file, message IDs and messages (in different languages) are specified.

The data in this file is of the following format:





<1> Message ID

Unique name assigned to each message.

The message ID must be specified using up to 16 characters.

<2> Language ID and messages in different languages

The language IDs specified in the message generator parameter file and the messages written in the corresponding languages are specified.

Note the following restrictions:

- A character string following an exclamation mark (!), except for any within a character string, is assumed to be a comment.
- An intervening blank or tab, except for any within a character string, is ignored.
- A single character string must be enclosed by a pair of double quotation marks.
- A single character string enclosed by a pair of double quotation marks can be coded over multiple lines. Two or more character strings can be coded on a single line.

For example, the message in <3> above, is displayed as follows: 111222333"SECOND LINE THIRD LINE" END

• The length of a single message is not limited. Each line can be up to 512 characters long.

• A double quotation mark (") is coded as \", \ as \\, a line feed character as \n, and a tab character as \t.

- The messages for all the languages specified in the parameter file must be included.
- \* Message file (The extension is always .msg.)

This file is automatically created by the message generator.

The file name is the same as that of the message text file, but with the extension changed to .msg. The message files of different languages are identified by their paths alone.

\* Message ID header file (The extension is always .h.)

This file is automatically created by the message generator.

The file name is the same as that of the message text file, but with the extension changed to .h.

This file contains group IDs and message IDs.

The data in this file is of the following format:

// Group ID definition
#define MSG\_GID\_DNCOP "m\_dncop"
// Message ID definition
#define MSG\_STOP 0
#define MSG\_SCHEDULE 1
#define MSG\_SUBPROGCALL 2

•••

• Creating a message file

To create a message file, follow the procedure given below:

1. Create a parameter file (MSGPRM.DAT).

The MSG folder on the disk (A02B-0207-K760#ZZ07-5) contains the parameter file that is used to develop DNC Operation Management Package.

2. Create a message text file (M\_DNCOP.TXT, for example).

The MSG folder on the disk (A02B-0207-K760#ZZ07-5) contains the message text file that is used to develop DNC Operation Management Package.

Execute the message generator (MSGGEN32.EXE), and create message ID header files (M\_DNCOP.H, for example) and message files of different languages (M\_DNCOP.MSG, for example). When executing the message generator, use the following format:

msggen32 prm\_file\_name group\_ID

prm\_file\_name: Parameter file name (full path name)
group\_ID : ID of the group to be created (When all is
specified, all groups are generated.)

The message files of all languages and message ID header files are created for the group specified as group\_ID. group\_ID must be specified in the parameter file.

When all is specified, the files for all specified groups are created.

Example)	
msggen32	msgprm.dat MSG_GID_DNCOP
	$\rightarrow$ Creates the messages to be displayed on the DNC
	Operation Management Package screen.
msggen32	msgprm.dat all
	$\rightarrow$ Creates all messages.

When the message generator terminates, one of the following messages is displayed to show the result of the execution.

Error No.0	:	Normal end.
		The message generator has terminated normally.
Error No.1	:	Internal error in file_name line ####
		An internal error occurred.
Error No.2	:	Can't open file_name
		The file cannot be opened.
Error No.3	:	Illegal parameter file format in file_name line ####
		The parameter file is of an illegal format.
Error No.4	:	Too many languages in file_name line ####
		The number of languages has exceeded 20.
Error No.5	:	Too short/long language name in file_name line
		####
		A language name consists of other than three
		characters.
Error No.6	:	Too long group-ID name (max 16 char) in
		file_name line ####
		A group ID is longer than 16 characters.

Error No.7 :	Too long file name in file_name line ####
	A file name is longer than eight characters.
Error No.8 :	Too long path name in file_name line ####
	A path name is longer than 80 characters.
Error No.9 :	Not found group-ID
	The specified group ID is not found in the
	parameter file.
Error No.10:	Illegal message in file_name line ####
	An illegal message has been found. (An unpaired
	double quotation mark is used, for example.)
Error No.11:	Illegal text file format in file_name line ####
	The format of the message text file is illegal.
Error No.12:	Lack of language in file_name line ####
	A message of a language is missing. (The messages
	of all languages specified in the parameter file must
	be included.)
Error No.13:	Double message definition in file_name line ####
	Two or more messages are defined in a single
	language for a single message.
Error No.14 :	Too long message-ID name (max 16 char) in
	file_name line ####
	A message ID is longer than 16 characters.

## NOTE

Double definition of an ID (group ID, message ID) is not checked and will not cause any error.

## INDEX

## Ν

NC Programs for Scheduled Operation	28,	2
NC Programs for Subprogram Call Operation	38,	3

## 0

Opening an existing schedule file	34, 2
Operating Environment	2, 2

## Р

Performing Scheduled Operation	27, 2
Performing Subprogram Call Operation	37, 3

## S

Saving a schedule file under a new name	35, 3
SCHEDULED OPERATION	26, 2
Screens	16, 2
Setting general options for DNC Operation Manag	gement
Package	51, 3
Setting Scheduled Operation	29, 2
Setting screen colors	56, 3
Setting soft keys	53, 3
Setting soft keys as empty	71, 3
Setting Subprogram Call Operation	
Setting the CNC Parameters	6, 2
Setting the messaging option	60, 3
Setting the NC program transfer options	58, 3
Setting the path number output option	57, 3
SETUP	1, 2
Showing or hiding chapters	70, 3
Specifying a folder containing subprograms	41, 3
Starting and Terminating DNC Operation Manage	ement
Package	13, 2
Starting DNC Operation Management Package	13, 2
SUBPROGRAM CALL OPERATION	36, 3
Switching the message language	85, 3
SWITCHING THE MESSAGE LANGUAGE	90, 3

## B

BACKING UP THE SETTING FILE	. 89,	, 3
BASIC KNOWLEDGE	.11,	, 2

## С

Changing settings for screen objects	81, 3
Changing the order in which message languages	
are listed	87, 3
Changing the order in which screens appear	68, 3
Creating a new schedule file	31, 2
Creating custom screen objects	75, 3
Creating custom screens	62, 3
CUSTOMIZATION	48, 3
Customizing General Settings for DNC Operation	
Management Package	49, 3
Customizing Message Languages	8, 3
Customizing Screen Objects	73, 3
Customizing Screens	61, 3

## D

Deleting screen objects	.82, 3
Deleting screens	.69, 3
Displaying Version Information	.25, 2
DNC Operation	.12, 2

## I

Installing DNC Operation Management Package4, 2	2
Installing message languages84, 2	3
Integration with Basic Operation Package	2

## $\mathbf{M}$

MESSAGE FILE GENERATOR	95, 3
MONITORING THE PROGRESS OF DNC	
OPERATION	43, 3
Monitoring the Progress of DNC Operation	44, 3

## Т

Terminating DNC Operation Management Package ......15, 2

## U

Uninstalling DNC Operation Management Package 10	, 2
Uninstalling message languages	, 3

## W

# **Revision Record**

# FANUC OPEN CNC DNC Operation Management Package OPERATOR'S MANUAL (B-63214EN)

			Contents
			Date
			Edition
			Contents
		Feb, '99	Date
		01	Editio n

- No part of this manual may be reproduced in any form.
- All specifications and designs are subject to change without notice.